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Murray Bailey - Chairman

Rebecca Holland-Kennedy
Managing Director

Dear Shareholder,

[tis with great pleasure that | write my
first letter to PepinNini Shareholders since
my appointment in January 2014.

I have worked in the mining industry for
over thirty years. | retired from the
position of Chief Executive Officer of
Yancoal Ltd (ASX: YAL)in July 2013 after
nearly three years, with the company
whichis amajority Chinese-owned coal
major. | was previously Chief Operations
Officer of New Hope Corporationand
Executive General Manager of
Wesfarmers Resources Limited.

I was impressed by the hard work
Managing Director Rebecca
Holland-Kennedy and her team have
undertaken to develop the PepinNini
portfolio of exploration projects. The
portfolio has real potential and this year

I have enjoyed contributing to taking key
projects to the next stage of development,

and thereby driving value across the group.

Our projectin Argentina at Santa Ines has
seen two stages of systematic exploration
activities which have delineated target
areas with significant high priority
Porphyry Cu-Auand Epithermal Cu-Au
targets;,'LaRecompensa’and'El Obsequio"

The company has continued to
concentrate on our Musgrave Projects
over the last twelve months with
significant and encouraging results.

Drill testing of SkyTEM508 targets
generatedin 2012-2013 hasresultedin
theintersection of massive to strongly
disseminated magmatic sulphides grading
up to 0.25% Copper at the Marrawah
Prospect. Arenewed R&D collaboration
with CSIRO was announced for fixed wing
high-moment electromagnetic data
collectionandinterpretation with
expenditure up to $0.5m funded by grant
and company contribution.

Asuccessful entitlements issue which
commenced in April 2014 and completed
subsequent to the end of the reporting
yearraised $0.94mandin July the
company announced the divestment

of the Curnamona Project to ensure our
exploration activities are funded through
to 2016-2017.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

PepinNini continues to be enthusiastic
about our future exploration prospects
and highly motivated to continue exploring
our diversified projects. Nickel-Copper
and Platinum Group Elements (PGE)
continue tobe targeted for our Musgrave
Project in South Australia which
incorporates our joint venture with Rio
Tinto and our exciting new projectinthe
West Musgrave, the Manchego project
with Phosphate Australiain Western
Australia. We will continue with our
Argentine Project searching for copper
and gold into 2015.

The Company continues to explore and
administer in the most efficient manner
possible to ensure all exploration willbe
focused towards our primary objective of
rewarding our investors by the discovery
of amajor new mineral deposit.

Onbehalf of the Directors of PepinNini

I would like to thank management and all
PepinNini staff for their support,
dedication and assistance during the year
and on behalf of the Directors | thank all
our shareholders for their continued
supportand loyalty during the past year
and look forward to arewarding year of
explorationahead.

Mgt

Murray Bailey
Chairman
PepinNiniMinerals Limited
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2014 HIGHLIGHTS

AUSTRALIA

02

MUSGRAVE PROJECT

.

-SOUTHAUSTRALIA

Drilltesting of the SkyTEM508
target at Marrawah Prospect
intersected massive to strongly
disseminated magmatic sulphides
grading up to 0.25% Copper.

Drilltesting of V-TEM and ground
electromagnetic targets at
Cooperinnahas concluded following
the completion of four diamond
core at the Yagen, Deception,
Venus and Cactus Prospects.

The EM conductivity targets at the
Yagen, Deception, Venus and Cactus
Prospects were conclusively tested,
adequately resolved and attributed
tothe occurrence of graphite bearing
gneiss or graphite bearing shear
structures within the bedrock
sequence. Each of the holes did
contain some quantity of

disseminated to blebby magmatic
sulphide within the crystalline
basement associated with intruded
magmatic mafic melt. The sulphide
species observed within the coreis
dominantly pyrrhotite (iron sulphide).

Two diamond core holes were
completed at the Marrawah Prospect
whichis locatedin the eastern part of
EL5185“Woodroffe". The drilling was
undertaken to investigate the source
of awell constrained electromagnetic
anomaly which had been defined
during fixed-loop ground EM
surveying across a SkyTEM508
electromagnetic anomaly. The
conductivity target was modeled to
be asteeply dipping 7 millisecond
time constant response proximal

to the layered mafic Giles Complex
Caroline Intrusion.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED

Sydney

' Hobart

Drillhole DD13WODO17 intersected
strongly disseminated to massive
sulphide accumulations associated
with intrusive mafic lithologies
between75.6 to 94.4m (down hole
depth) at the modeled position

of the conductivity anomaly.

The sulphide phases present
consist of abundant coarse
pyrrhotite (iron sulphide) with
lesser pyrite (iron sulphide) and
chalcopyrite (copper sulphide).
Analytical results from the sulphide
bearingintervals returned
maximum results of 2,500ppm
Copper, 745ppm Nickel, 660ppm
cobalt, 13ppb gold, 3.5ppb Platinum
and 6ppb palladium.



AnR&D collaboration with CSIRO
was announced for fixed wing
high-moment electromagnetic data
collection and interpretation with
expenditure up to $0.5m funded by
grant and company contribution.

Three nickel-sulphide prospects
within the Caroline Project (100%
PNN) named Scott, Wandila and
Fowler were outlined. The mineral
potential of these prospects was
highlighted following identification
of seven discrete magnetic
targets near the intersections

of major structure and gravity
lineaments. These positive
interpretations highlight the
potential for prospective mafic
feeder dykes within the project
area.Planning is still ongoing for
aroughly 2,500 line kilometre
airborne electromagnetic survey
in 2015 to investigate the presence
of nickel-sulphide mineralisation
withinand around these
high-priority prospects.

CURNAMONA PROJECT
- SOUTH AUSTRALIA

Subsequent to the end of the year
on15 July 2014 PepinNini Minerals
Ltd announced the signing of a Sale
and Purchase Agreement for its
40% interest in the Uraniumand
Mineral Resources Joint Venture for
$2.3m. The purchaser is Sinosteel
Uranium SA Pty Ltd.

ARGENTINA

h

Systematic exploration activities
including geological mapping, .
sampling and ground geophysics

over the Santa Ines Project in Salta

Province delineated high priority

Porphyry Cu-Auand Epithermal
Cu-Autargets;,'LaRecompensa’

and'El Obsequio’

Coincident anomalous poly-metallic
values with maxima of 3.256%
Copper, 0.8g/tgold, 12.5 g/tsilver,
91.1ppm molybdenuminrock chip
samples

1.4km x 0.8km concealed magnetic
target identified for further
geophysicalinvestigation
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ARGENTINA

APPOINTMENT OF
NEW CHAIRMAN

Murray Bailey was appointed

Chairman of PepinNini Minerals Ltd.

Mr. Bailey brings with him extensive
mining industry experience from
both Australiaand overseas and his
appointment is very significant to
the company.

o
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TENEMENT SCHEDULE

Tenement ‘ Tenement Name ‘ Area Km? ‘ PepinNini Interest Grant Date
South Australia ‘
EL4587 Mt Harcus 1,607 100% 251010
EL4749 Outalpa 201 40% 10.06.1
EL4780 Pine Ridge 1382 100% 131011
EL4784 Scott Hill 521 40% 131011
EL5185 Woodroffe 764 Earning 51% 24.09.2
EL5220 Mt Caroline 1,916 100% 250213
EL5462 Kalabity 822 40% 12.03.09
EL4375 Bimbowrie 843 40% 12.11.09
EL4%5 Mt Victor 1,218 40% 30.0712
ELA278/82 Jalukana 77 Earning 51% application
ELA49194 Aparatjara 537 Earning 51% application
ELATIB/6 Anerinna Hills 2,415 100% application
ELAWB596 Willugudinna 823 100% application
ELA36709 Mt Caroline West 46 100% application
ELA36809 Hanging Knoll =7 100% application
Queensland ‘
mML2720 Gooligoomba 83ha 100% 0110.84
EPM15469 The Gilbert 13 100% 07.03.07
EPMIBO20 Clarke River 187 100% 04.0213
EPMI18048 Keppel Creek 41 100% 310311
EpmM18979 Oasis 147 100% 170812
Western Australia
ES52/19¢4 - 33 50% 0111.07
Es2/190 = 204 50% 10.08.06
Eszi72z = 60 50% 0112.04
Es2/1672 = 106 40% 22.09.05
Es2/1670 - 27 40% 2311.04
ES2/613 - 91 40% 29.03.06
E51/1033 = 161 40% 22.09.05
Total 14,270
Argentina ‘
Mina Santalnes I 35 100% 270613
Mina Santalnes VI 44 100% application
Mina Santa Ines IV 35 100% 281113
Mina Santa Ines X 34 100% application
Mina Santa Ines XI 53 100% application
Mina Santa Ines 18ha 100% 20.09M
Santalnes 31 100% 170812
Mina Santa Ines Il 1 100% application
Mina SantaInes V 26 100% application
Mina SantaInes VI 35 100% application
Mina Santa Ines IX 34 100% application
Mina Santa Ines VIII 30 100% application
Total 290

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



INTRODUCTION

PepinNiniMinerals Limitedis a
diversified Australian mineral
exploration Company. The Company
was incorporated in August 2002
asaproprietary company limited by
shares, known as PepinNini Mining
Company Pty Limited. InMarch
2004, the Company changed its
name to PepinNini Minerals Limited,
and converted its status to a public
company limited by shares to facilitate
aninitial public offering and listing on
ASXin April, 2005.

The Company's primary business
objectives are to:

* reward investors;

» discoverand participatein the
development of major new mineral
deposits;

= conduct explorationand corporate
activitiesinaresponsible and
professional manner in accordance
with industry standards whilst
observing statutory requirements;

* define, quantify and develop the
considerable mineralisation
potential already recognised in the
exploration tenements held by the
Company; and

+ establish equitable and respectful
relationships with the traditional
owners of tenement areas held by
the Company.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

PepinNinihad at the end of the
reportingyear aninterestintwenty

seven exploration tenements covering

approximately 14,270km?in the

Curnamona and Musgrave Provinces of
South Australia, the Georgetown Inlier,

Woolgar Goldfield and Drummond
Basinareas of North Queensland

and the Robinson Range area of the
Midwest region of Western Australia.
Italsoholdsal00% interestinan83
hectare mining lease in the Woolgar
Goldfield. The Company also has one
granted cateo (exploration lease),
four granted mina (mining leases) and
seven applications for conversion of
cateo to mina covering approximately
290kms?inthe Argentine province
of Salta.

Subsequent to the end of the year five
tenements of the Curnamona Project

held 40% by PepinNini have been sold.

The Musgrave tenements have the
potential for the discovery of a major
world class nickel copper sulphide and

platinum group element(PGE) deposit.

Subsequent to the end of the year
PepinNiniannounced an expansion of
the Musgrave Project into Western
Australia with the Manchego Project
purchase option with Phosphate
Australia Lt (ASX:POZ).

The Robinson Range tenements

are being explored for high grade
direct shippingiron ore deposits. A
Resource of 177MT at @ 49.7% Fe
including4.3MT @ 55.2% Fereported
in accordance with JORC code (2004)
has beendefined at the PNN Area C
Prospect.

The Queensland tenements are
prospective for the discovery of high
grade gold and uranium.

In Argentina the Company is initially
targeting copper-gold porphyries;
precious and base-metal epithermal
systems and breccia-complexes
associated with the Andean volcanic
belt.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

During the year the Company's
exploration activities were focussed on
five main projects designated as the:

a) Musgrave Province Project;

b) Curnamona Province Project;
(divested subsequently)

c) NorthQueensland Project
d) RobinsonRange Project.

e) Argentina-SantaInes Project,
Salta

The Company has established a
respectful relationship with the
traditional owners of our Musgrave
tenements and supports local
communities through active
sponsorship of cultural, with the SA
Museum, and sporting events as well
as sponsoring art shows produced
by various communities within the
Anangu Pitjantjatjara Yankunytjatjara
(APY)Lands and the Adelaide Fringe.

o
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MUSGRAVE PROVINCE
PROJECT

Introduction

The project consists of four granted
exploration licences EL4780,
EL5185,EL5220 and EL4587 and

six exploration licence applications
ELAT118/96, ELA185/96,ELA278/82,
ELA491/94,ELA367/09,and
ELA368/09. PepinNini subsidiary
NiCul Minerals Limited (formerly
PepinNini Resources Pty Limited)is
earninga51% interestin EL5185 and
ELA278/82and ELA491/94 under a
Farm-in and Joint Venture Agreement
with Rio Tinto Ltd subsidiary Rio Tinto
Exploration Pty Limited.

The tenements are considered
prospective for nickel, base metals,
gold, platinum group metals, ferrous
metals and precious stones. The
project comprises sixteen separate

areas covering approximately 9,601 km?.

Subsequent to the end of the year
PepinNinihas taken up a Purchase
option with Phosphate Australia
Ltd(ASX:POZ)for the exploration of
the Manchego Project in the West
Musgrave region of Western Australia
covering one granted exploration
licence E69/2864 and one licence
application ELA69/3131. The option
is foranultimate 80% interestin the
project over atwo year period.

Prospectivity

The Musgrave Provinceis a large,
under-explored Proterozoic Block with
adiversity of geological environments
located inthe north-west corner of
South Australia extending across the
borderinto the Northern Territory
and Western Australia. Proterozoic
Blocks represent some of the most
prospective terrain for mineral
explorationin Australia and include
the well known mineral provinces of
the Mount Isa Inlier, Broken Hill, the
Granites TanamiBlock, the Gascoyne
Complex and the Tennant Creek Inlier.

Demonstrated potential exists within
the Musgrave Province of South

Australia for base metals (copper, lead,

zinc) and ferrous metals (chromium,
nickel, vanadium, titanium). Potential
also exists for precious metals
(platinum group metals, gold and
silver), precious stones (diamonds
and rubies), heavy mineral sands and
rare earths.

The prospectivity of Proterozoic
rocks is wellrecognised and, with the
exception of those contained within
the Musgrave Province, have generally
beensubject torelatively intense
exploration for a considerable period
of time yielding a number of world
class mineral deposits. Australian
Proterozoic hosted world-class
mineral deposits include:

+ OlympicDam (Cu, Au, U)
+ BrokenHill (Pb, Zn, Ag)
+ Mtlsa(Cu,Pb,Zn,Ag)

* Hilton(Pb, Zn, Ag)

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED

+ Cannington (Pb, Zn, Ag)

+ Century (Zn,Pb,Ag)

* McArthur River/HYC (Pb, Zn, Ag)
o Telfer (Au)

* Alligator River Field (U, Au,
platinoids)

+ Argyle AK1(diamonds)
* Hamersley Basin (Fe)
* NeboBabel (Cu-Ni-PGE)

Although PepinNiniis initially
concentrating on discovering large
Ni-Cu sulphide deposits similar to
Voisey's Bay, Canada, the Company

is aware that the tenements are also
very prospective for Broken Hill style
base metal (Pb-Zn-Ag) deposits in

the metasediments of the Birksgate
Complex. These metasediments also
have considerable potential to host
base metal sedex deposits similar
toMtlsaand Century. Thereisalso
good discovery potential for layered
intrusive platinum group element
(PGE) sulphide deposits such as the
Platreef, Merensky and UG-2 Reefs of
the Bushveld Complex in South Africa.

Drilling by PepinNini within EL4587 has
intersected sulphide-bearing mafic/
ultramaficrocks with concentration

of nickel and copper mineralisation
confirming the geological environment
exists for the potential development
and accumulation of Voiseys Bay style
mineralisation. The presence of mixed
sulphide mineralisation assaying up
t00.46% Cuand 0.33% Niprovides
encouragement that the Harcus
Intrusion could host significant nickel-
copper sulphide mineralisation.
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Figure 1- Tenement Location Musgrave Province, South Australia.

Current Exploration

PepinNiniMinerals is currently
undertaking exploration programs
primarily focused on targeting
nickel-copper sulphides contained
within the layered mafic-ultramafic
Giles Complexrocks. The Giles
Complexis considered to be highly
prospective for Ni-Cu sulphide and
PGE mineralisation following the
discovery of the Nebo-Babel deposit
in Western Australia by WMC (392Mt
@ 0.30%Niand 0.33%Cu) and now
held by Cassini Resources(ASX:CZI)
in 2014 who are currently increasing
resource confidence and extending
mineralisation. The base metal
potential of felsicand mafic gneisses
of the Birksgate Complex is also being
investigated.

During the past year exploration
activity focused on the Cooperinna
block of EL4587 and Woodroffe
EL5158.

Following the successful generation
of targets from the previous SkyTEM
surveys, a 200 line kilometre
helicopter borne electromagnetic
survey (V-TEM) was extended

across the western portions of the
CooperinnaBlock during August
2012. Multiple high priority responses
considered worthy of follow-up were
identified fromthe acquired V-TEM
data. Theresponses formanumber
of discrete “multi-line” clusters which
locate favourably to the conceptual
geological model by being spatially
coincident to interpreted mafic-

ultramaficintrusions and feeder dykes.
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Drill testing of V-TEM and ground
electromagnetic targets at Cooperinna
has concluded following the completion
of four diamond core holes at the
Yagen, Deception, Venus and Cactus
Prospects.

The EM conductivity targets at the
Yagen, Deception, Venus and Cactus
Prospects were conclusively tested,
adequatelyresolved and attributed
tothe occurrence of graphite

bearing gneiss or graphite bearing
shear structures within the bedrock
sequence. Each of the holes did contain
some quantity of disseminated to
blebby magmatic sulphide within the
crystalline basement associated with
intruded magmatic mafic melt. The
sulphide species observed within the
core is dominantly pyrrhotite (iron
sulphide). This was confirmed by
geochemical analyses.

o
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Cooperinna EL4587 : Drill Program (Sept Quarter 2013)

Current Exploration (continued)

Two diamond core holes (Table T) were
completed at the Marrawah Prospect
which s located in the eastern part
of EL5185 “"Woodroffe” (Figure 3).
The drilling was undertaken to
: ; investigate the source of awell
- . constrained electromagnetic anomaly

S e R whichhad been defined during fixed-

- 1 -' loop ground EM surveying across a
SkyTEM508 electromagnetic anomaly.
The conductivity target was modeled
tobe asteeply dipping 7millisecond
time constant response proximal to
the layered mafic Giles Complex
Caroline Intrusion.

SRE00mE EO0000mE
AEM Survey Outlines <3y Interpreted Outline - A
Pepinfini Mineralsr o  Dpumono core Borenore Mafic Intrusions
Limited o Vacuum Boretofe 1k

Figure 2 - Diamond Drill Hole Locations September Quarter 2013, Cooperinna block (EL4587).

Marrawah Prospect EL5185
Diamond Borehole Locations

& Diamond Core Borehole Collar & Trace

Ground EM (FLEM) Positions
Fined Transmitter Loop :{1 100m
Recsiver Station

Figure 3-Borehole Locations Woodroffe Tenement EL 5185.

Table 1 - Diamond drill hole details - Marrawah Prospect |

Hole ID I Easting I Northing I Elevation I Azimuth I Dip I Depth I
MarrawahProspect 5
DDIBWODOT7 | 667350mE |  7085300mN | 619m | woe i 600 14397m |
DDI3WODOI8 | 667300mE | 7085325mN . 6lem . e 60° 1 24907m |

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



Drillhole DD13WODO17 intersected
strongly disseminated to massive
sulphide accumulations associated
with intrusive mafic lithologies
between75.6 to 94.4m (down hole
depth) at the modeled position of the
conductivity anomaly. The sulphide
phases present consist of abundant
coarse pyrrhotite (iron sulphide)
with lesser pyrite (iron sulphide)

and chalcopyrite (copper sulphide)
which are hosted within pyroxenite
and gabbronorite. A photograph

of drill coreintersecting the main
sulphidic zone is presented as Figure
4. Analyticalresults from the sulphide
bearing intervals returned maximum
results of 2,500ppm Copper, 745ppm
Nickel, 660ppm cobalt, 13ppb gold,
3.5ppb Platinum and 6ppb palladium
(Table 2).

' Phannion, B | Pty G st I
i Maisn ic..ul., I Pla i 3ol poot o (o padon, b '
fnd
3
- %,
== =

Figure 4 - DDI3WODOI7 from depth 84 to 93 metres: image showing massive to
semi-massive pyrrhotite hosted within a sulphidic pyroxenite and gabbronorite.

Table 2 - Summary of Core sample assay results

All results reported in ppm unless stated
Hole from to (m)
Copper ‘ Nickel ‘ Cobalt ‘ Chrome Sulphur Iron
”””””””””” 756 7631 07 783, 435! 902 179 405%  132%
7631 769 06 731 78 625 161 058%  1235%
. 769 777, 08 1655 250 653 125 0 120% | 13.25% |
T 784 07 361 1565 861 183 1% 1535%
784l 792 08 357 602 568 | 59 | 095% | 13.25% |
7920 803 1. 87, s L 46 9 473% 103% |
. 803 808 05 n6s: 931 685 N5  03%: 936%
. 808 815! 07 339 1065 588 13 037% 91% |
.85 851 11 4641 255 6481 B0 0S2% | 103%
é 82.5 83.6 11 156.5 ! 90.7 59.9 93 0.29% 12.8%
S i 836 846 1. 1000 479 390 78 0 >100% | 301% |
= 846 1 g6 1. 160 . 163 87 107 | 458% @ 196% |
° 856 1 866 1. 1240 210 i 79 >100% |  234% |
. 866! 874 08 640 B0 658 1 | 62| 352% . 1345% |
7S 881 07 1470 156 021 100 | 609% | 1745% |
. e8ll g1l 1. 18100 672 660 520 >100% 361% |
s ! 09! 130 745 3201 501 >100% | 366% |
o % a1l 1280 1 339 244 34 >100% 198% |
o a: 92!  1: 2270 39 20 82 >I00%: 236% |
o 2 03! 1 16501 - 450 36 82 >100% |  255% |
o 03 94 1 1280 1 296 1295 1250 808% .  219% |
o 04 945 05 2500 335 29 125 1 936% | 217% |

Note: Allmetreages quoted are down - hole depths as true widths are not known.
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Current Exploration (continued)

Theintersectionin DD13WODO017
confirms that encouraging sulphide
accumulations can be dependability
identified from AEM (airborne
electromagnetic surveying) within
the Musgrave Province as a valuable
exploration targeting toolin the
search for magmatic nickel - copper
sulphide deposits.

In June 2014 PepinNini announced the
details of three high-priority Nickel
Sulphide (Ni-S) prospects identified
within the Caroline Project. The Ni-S
prospects are named Scott, Fowlers
and Wandilaand are located along a
prominent south-east trending domain
boundary and within intersections

of key east-west (Wintinginna FZ)

and north-east trending structural
lineaments. PepinNiniwill be targeting
Ni-S mineralisation associated with
north-west to north-east plunging
mafic feeder dykes termed chonoliths,
analogous to the geological setting

of the Nebo-Babel deposits that host
significant Nickel-Copper mineralisation
inthe West Musgrave Region. Seven
discrete magnetic targets have been
identified near intersections of major
structures and gravity lineaments and
highlights the potential for chonoliths in
the projectarea. The presence of Ni-Cu
massive sulphides within the project
areawill be investigated througha
collaborative geological and geophysical
research project with the Minerals Down
Under (MDU) Flagship of the CSIRO,
involving the acquisition and analysis
of airborne electromagnetic survey
dataduring 2015.

Surﬁfimeﬂe Grav. high S yfa0e oxtent o Arierifinn Grav FIo
> o
i m y it :I.-/!j.! - [i2) S wi(3)
Gﬂ?t:lhs;r:e

¥ Deep

Mantle Plume Head

Lateral focus of Ni, Cu, PGE bearing mafic magma
to suture zones

Figure 5 - Schematic cross-section through PepinNini's Caroline and Anerinna Hills
project showing the location of major mafic magmatism (gravity) in relation to deep
crustal structures (magnetics). PepinNini is targeting 1) Nebo-Babel style
mineralisation in feeder dykes to the Caroline Intrusion, 2) structurally controlled
mineralisation associated with mafic magmatism channelled laterally into the
Wintinginna FZ, and 3) Jinchuan-style mineralisation hosted in superjacent
(stratigraphically above) mafic dykes replenished by a deeply buried mafic source.

Marrawah propsect = &
PNN Rio Tinto JV / ok RS
LET Fault Zone

Caroline Intrusive
Complex

+ Magnetic farget :
(Possible Feeder Dyke) "\

»
Winting;

nna Fayg Zone

Figure 6 - Location of Nickel Sulphide (Ni-S) geological prospects within PepinNini's
Caroline Ni-Cu Project, central Musgrave Region of South Australia. Ni-S prospects are
located favourably near the intersections of east-west crustal lineaments and a
south-east trending curvilinear domain boundary. The identification of discrete
magnetic targets within north-east structures highlights the potential for mafic feeder
dykes (chonoliths) within the project area. The presence of massive Ni-S will be
investigated through alarge airborne electromagnetic survey planned for Q1 2015.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



Curnamona Project - Tenement Location Plan

Pepinfini Minerals
Limited

lronstone

Billeroo

Dome Rock North

Broken Hill

Macdonald Corridor

Outalpa

South Australia
New South Wales

Hawson (CAP)
*

Lilydale (HAV)
*

O Uranium Project

O Iron Project Rozorback (AOY)
O Copper Project *m_

Figure 7 - Tenement Location Curnamona Project, South Australia.
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CURNAMONA
PROVINCE PROJECT

At the close of thereporting year
PepinNini Minerals Limited held a
40% interestin five granted
exploration licences covering
approximately 3,605 km? of the
Curnamona Province of South
Australia (Figure 7). A Joint Venture
Alliance was established in 2007 with
Sinosteel Corporation to manage
and operate the development of

the Crocker Well Uranium Deposit
and explore for other commodities
within the Joint Venture tenements.
InDecember, 2009 a decision was
made by the Joint Venture to delay the
completion of a Bankable Feasibility
Study for the development of the
Crocker Well Uranium Deposit due to
adepressed uranium price and weak
American dollar. The focus since 2010
has been on other minerals, mainly
ironore.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting
year PepinNini announced the signing
of aSale and Purchase Agreement
forits 40% interest in the Uranium

and Mineral Resources Joint Venture
between PepinNiniResources
Curnamona Pty Ltd, awholly owned
subsidiary of PepinNini Minerals Ltd,
and Sinosteel Uranium SA Pty Ltd.

Under the Sale and Purchase
Agreement Sinosteel Uranium SA Pty
Ltdis the purchaser and the purchase
considerationis $2.3m.

—_
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ARGENTINA PROJECT

PepinNinihave one granted cateo
(exploration leases), four granted mina
(mining lease) and seven applications
for acateo conversion to mina covering
approximately 290 kms?in the
Argentine province of Salta. The Salta
Project comprises two separate areas
designated as Santa Ines and Chivinar.

SaltaProvince isrecognised as one

of the most mining friendly provinces
inArgentinaandis a province where
mining rights are well regulated. The
geology is prospective for copper-gold
porphyries; precious and base-metal
epithermal systems and breccia-
complexes associated with the Andean
volcanic belt.

Theregionis traversed by an
international gas pipeline, high-
transmission power lines extending
from Salta across to Chile and the
Salta-Antofagastarailway, whichis
currently partially operational.

Antofagasta

ARGENTINA

Santa Ines

The Santa Ines Project comprises
three mina (mining licence), one cateo
(exploration licence) and eight cateo
conversion to mina applications.

The projectis situated inthe

Los Andes Department of Salta
~35km south of Socompa and 65km
southwest of Tolar Grande. This
project logistically benefits by being
only 5kmfromthe Salta-Antofagasta
railway and is easily accessed using
existingroads and tracks.

The Santa Ines Project lays within
acrustal scale NW trending mega-
lineament (Figure 8), which in Andean
geology are widely recognised as being
major long-lived structural corridors
that are fundamental in the control

of the distribution of porphyry-
epithermal deposits. The “Archibarca”
NW lineament extends from Cerro
Galan (Argentina's largest ignimbrite
caldera complex) in the southeast
through to the Pacific coast of Chile.

Known mineralization along this
lineament to the immediate southeast

of SantaInes includes Mansfield's
Lindero Gold Porphyry project (2.2
Moz. Au) thatis currently in feasibility
and advanced Cu-Au exploration
projects including Rio Grande,
Arizario and Samenta. Situated
some 100km to the northwest

along the same lineament is BHP's
giant Escondida Cu-Au porphyry
(~5billion tonnes at1% Cuand 0.25
g/t Au) which also was deposited
contemporaneously with the Santa
Ines Formation event during the Late
Eocene-Oligocene.

Santa Ines mina comprises anumber
of small artisanal diggings consisting
of shallow pits exploiting abundant
secondary copper and specular
haematite mineralisation associated
with haematite-silica veining withina
broader envelope of albitic alteration.
Orientated to the NE this steeply
dipping vein system extends across
alow outcropping hill.
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More recent shallow pits indicate

that mineralisationis evident for at
least 400m across strike whereas
along strike it becomes lost under thin
cover atthebase of ahill after afew
hundred metres. Published reports

by SEGEMAR (Argentine Geological
Survey) describe the mineralisation at
Santa Ines as being gold bearing with
mineralisation present dominantly

as malachite, azurite, chrysocolla

and specular haematite with minor
primary mineralisation occurring as
chalcopyrite and chalcocite. Samples
collected recently by PepinNini
Minerals confirm high grade copper
and gold mineralizationis present.

InDecember 2013 and April 2014
PepinNiniundertook field activities
within the SantaInes project involving
field mapping, soiland rock chip
sampling and ground magnetic
geophysical surveys.

Two prospects (Figure 9)
were delineated:

i) ElObsequio - The Gift

ii) LaRecompensa-TheReward

2580000mE Z5ES000ME 2590000mE

Figure 9 - Santa Ines Prospects.
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The geological field team completed
1,000 ha of mapping across the central
portion of the project area which lies
tothe west of the historic Santa Ines
mine working during the first phase
of mapping activities. Thirty seven
rock chip and grab samples were
collected across the mapping area for
multi element geochemical analysis
and gold assay. Ten samples returned
significant results with eight of those
recording greater than 0.5% copper to
amaximumresult of 3.256% Copper.
The anomalous samples are located
in the vicinity and to the west of the
Santa Ines historic mine (Figure 10).
The tensamples alsorecorded
anomalous poly-metallic values with
maxima of 0.8 g/t gold,12.5 g/t silver,
91.1ppm molybdenum, 541.1ppm lead,
2,992ppmzinc, 36.29% iron,
and>200 ppm tungsten.
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Atotal of fifty eight rock samples
were also collected for hyperspectral
analyses to investigate the alteration
patterns across the project area.
Analysis of these samples using
aSpectral Evolution oreXpress
spectrometer supports field
observations indicative of regional
propylytic alteration within which
thereis locally developed crystalline
kaolinite andllite.

Adetailed, continuous-reading,
ground magnetic survey was
undertaken during the phase-|
exploration activities using locally
based geophysical contractors.

The survey involved the acquisition of
approximately 180 line kilometres of
dataalong150m spaced N-S survey
lines inthe central portion of the
project area (Figure 11).

The survey has highlighted an
interesting 1.4km x 0.8km target
inan area dominated by alluvial /
colluvial / scoria cover. Profiling of
the data suggests a deep magnetic
source worthy of additional
investigations given the association
of copper-gold mineralisation with
magnetite at the nearby Lindero and
Rio Grande deposits.
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Copper and gold results highlight
coincident anomalism in the vicinity of
ElObsequio prospect, (Figure 13) with
maximum value of 228ppm Cuand13.7
ppb Aupresentinsoil samples. This
expands on positive results from stage
1field activities, from which PepinNini
reported maximum concentrations

of 3.25% Cu, 0.8g/t Au, 91.1 ppm Mo
12.5 g/tsilver, inrock chip samples. No
interesting geochemical distributions
were identified from soil geochemical
sampling over the La Recompensa
prospect, although a single sample
contained 39.1ppb Au (Figure 11).

Four lines of pole-dipole IP were

read over two targets defined within
ElObsequio andLaRecompensa
(Figure 1) following positive
interpretation of ground magnetic data
within these areas. The chargeability
values ranged from 2 to 6mV/V across
the entire survey and the resistivity
values were high. Theresults detect
weak responses within El Obsequio
possibly sourced by narrow chargeable
bodies (veins). The IP survey did not
identify any significant chargeability
anomalism at La Recompensa.

PepinNiniare currently assessing
the merit of adrill campaign to test
anomalous base metal geochemistry
and IP anomalies at El Obsequio.
PepinNiniis exploring the project
areaforalarge copper-gold-
molybdenum porphyry system that
may also have iron-copper-gold (I0CG)
characteristics. Epithermal style
quartz veins were also identified,
though non-mineralised in the sparse
outcrop exposed.
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Figure 10 - Phase 1 exploration rock sample results.
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Figure 12 - Haematite matrix breccias with trace copper mineralisation from within
major shear zone located near the 'El Obsequio”epithermal Cu-Au prospect.
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Figure 13 -El Obsequio Prospect, Phase 2 sample results.
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NORTH QUEENSLAND
PROJECT

Currently the company has al00%
interestin 4 exploration tenements
(EPMs) and 1 mining lease in
Queensland. The company’s holding
covers approximately 388 kms?
prospective for Uranium, Copper,
Gold and Chromite. The tenements
are highly prospective for Uranium
and contain shear hosted uraninite
mineralisation over a strike extent
of 300mwith an average grade of
0.4% U,0,.

The licence covers radioactively
anomalous Mesoproterozoic Mywyn
Granite andis host to the Oasis
Uranium Deposit as well as anumber
otheruranium targets identified
fromregional radiometric surveys.
The licenceis also considered to have
some potential for epithermaland
shear / quartz vein hosted gold.

In October 2012 the Queensland
Government lifted the long standing
ban on Uranium mining within the state
improving the viability of the Oasis
Projectas anattractive exploration
opportunity.

The Oasis Project is located within the
eastern portion of the Georgetown
Inlier in terrane straddling the Lynd
Mylonite Zone. The west of the

Lynd Mylonite Zone is occupied by
Palaeoproterozoic amphibolite grade
metasediments of the Einasleigh
Metamorphics which are intruded

by the Mesoproterozoic A-type
Mywyn Granite. The eastern side

of the structure is occupied by
Neoproterozoic to Cambrian Oasis
Metamorphics which are intruded by
Silurian Pama Province Granitoids.

PepinNini Minerals limited

Figure 14 - QLD tenement locations.
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Figure 15 - Oasis tenement Geology.
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Previous explorers have drilled a total
of sixty three diamond drill coreand RC
percussion holes at the Oasis Deposit
however many of the holes are shallow.
Highlights of the previous exploration
activity withinthe tenement are:

* 10 metres from 54 metres with
012% or 2.64 bs/t U0,

e 7metresfrom 34 metres with
017%or3.741bs/tU,0,

*  5metres from 92 metres with
015%0r3.301bs/tU,0,

e 2metresfrom170 metres with
015% or 3.301bs/t U,0,

Ithas been surmised that the

lateral north - south extent of the
mineralisationis less than 300m and
that the thickness and grade of the
steeply dipping uraniferous zone
decreases with depth.

Queensland Project

Oasis EPM 18979
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Figure 16 - Oasis tenement regional airborne radiometrics.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

—_
~

SNOILVY3d0 40 MIIATYH



ROBINSON RANGE
PROJECT

PepinNini Minerals has a 50% interest
intheiron ore contained within three
tenements anda40% interestinthe
iron ore contained withinanother
four tenements locatedinthe
Midwest region of Western Australia.
Collectively the tenements cover
approximately 700km?and containa
40kms strike length of the Robinson
Range Formation considered highly
prospective forironore.Joint Venture
Agreements have been executed

to facilitate the exploration and
development of the iron ore potential
of the tenements. PepinNini Minerals
manage exploration onbehalf of the
Joint Venture partners.

Supergene enriched haematite and
haematite-goethite mineralisation
associated withbandedironand
granular iron formation units of the
Robinson Range Formation form
the primary target of the project.

Inferred Mineral Resource Estimate for PNN Area C - Robinson Range Project (June, 2012)

The Joint Venture is currently focused
on exploration of the identified Direct
Shipping Ore (DSO) potential of the
tenements. During 2011 and 2012
PepinNiniundertook an extensive
reverse circulation (RC) drilling
program designed to investigate
potential supergeneironoreresources
atelevenprospect areas located
amongst the ~40km strike length of
Robinson Range Formation identified
within the project area. Ninety eight
boreholes were completed for 5,609
metres of drilling.

Independent technical specialists,

H &S Consultants Pty Ltd, were
commissioned to undertake aresource
estimation for PNN Area C. Amaiden
Mineral Resource Estimate reportedin
accordance with the JORC code (2004)
of 4.65million tonnes grading 55.2% Fe
inthe Inferred Category was announced
on 28" December, 2011. Arevised
JORC(2004) Resource Estimate was
announced on 6" June, 2012 as follows;

Field reconnaissance and surface
sampling were also undertaken over
two new prospect areas designated as
“PNN Area-E"and "PNN Area-F".More
than fifty percent of the 21 surface
samples collected from within PNN
Area“E"returned assays in excess of
55% Fe and ranged up to a maximum of
66.4% Fe.Nine samples were collected
fromwithin PNN Area“F"and returned
assaysranging from32.2% Fe to
66.2% Fe.

During the 2014 year the company
continuedrehabilitation over the areas
previously explored and maintained
tenementreporting.

Million Cut Off Density Fe _— Al20s P S Ti02 Lol
Tonnes %Fe SG % e % % % % %

177 45 | 36 ! 497 133! 85 | 0.06 ! 0.04 ! 0.29 ! 54

43 52 38 ! 55.2 85 ! 6.5 0.06 0.05 0.21 ! 47

This information was prepared and first disclosed under JORC Code 2004. It has not been updated since to comply with the JORC Code 2012 on the basis that the

information has not materially changed since it was last reported.

MINERAL RESOURCES STATEMENT

No additional evaluation was undertaken on the haematite-goethite iron oxide
resource at PNN area C-Robinson Range Project during the reporting year ended
30 June 2014. The Inferred Mineral Resource Estimate therefore remains materially
unchanged from that disclosed under JORC(2004) on 6 June 2012.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED
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The informationin this report that relates to Exploration Results and Mineral Resources is based on information compiled by Phil Clfford BSc MAusIMM. Phil
Cliffordis the Technical Director of PepinNini Minerals Limited and has sufficient experience which is relevant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposit
under consideration to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2012 edition of the “Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral

Resources and Ore Reserves”. Phil Clifford consents to the inclusion in the report of the matters based on his information in the form and context in which it appears.

SUMMARY OF
GOVERNANCE
ARRANGEMENTS

PepinNini Minerals'internal resource
assessment and review process
reconciles where applicable previously
stated mineralresources against
updated figures inthe case of
additional exploration data.
PepinNinihave only one projectin
which aresource estimate isreported
(Mineral Resources Statement above)
and in this case noreconciliation was
undertaken for thereasons stated.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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FINANCIAL AND CORPORATE STRATEGY

The chart above shows the projects
within the company’s control and the
corporate entities that administer
them. As stated in the introduction
to this annual report the company's
primary business objective is to:

reward investors;

discover and participate in the
development of major new mineral
deposits;

conduct explorationand corporate
activities inaresponsible and
professional manner in accordance
with industry standards whilst
observing statutory requirements;

define, quantify and develop the
considerable mineralisation
potential already recognised in the
exploration tenements held by the
Company; and

establish equitable and respectful
relationships with the traditional
owners of tenement areas held by
the Company.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



The corporate strategy to achieve
these aims has been to, where possible,
realise value within the holdings of
the company and to fund effective
exploration activities withinkey
priority project areas to maximise

the potential of acommercially

viable mineral discovery. By using
in-house drilling expertise and its own
drilling and exploration equipment
the company cangenerate and
conclusively test valid exploration
targets with the additional advantage
of acapacity toraise revenue through
contract of these services to other
explorers.

Strategic equity raisings of capital
have beenand will be undertaken
toensure adequate funding for

worthy ongoing activities. Tenement
acquisitions either by payment, farm-in
tojoint venture or application may be
considered essential to maintaining
core activities.

Dividend payments may be considered
aswas the case in 2007 when the
windfall sale of 60% equity in
auranium project was partially
redistributed to shareholders.
Financially efficient and regulation
compliant company and project
administration is fundamental to the
corporate strategy.

The annual financial report for the year
ended 30 June 2014 is included with
the annualreport. At 30 June 2014, the
company had cash of $0.7m, working
capital of $1.0m, and anon-current
debtof $0.2m.

A capital raising entitlements issue
of shares commenced 24 April 2014
toraise up to S1.5m.

The issue was under a Prospectus and
details of the issue were:

* Eligible shareholders entitled to
2 sharesforevery 3 shares held
atrecord date 1May 2014

* Sharestobeatanissue price
of 1.9c per share

* Entitlement closure date was
22 May 2014

The entitlement issue raised $0.44m
with the issue of 23,294,559 shares.
Thisrepresented a 29% take up

of the entitlements on offer. Costs
totalling $0.02m were deducted
from the equity with share capital
increased by $0.42m. The shortfall
was available for a further three
months following the close during
which time a further $0.5mwas sold
and another 26,315,789 shares issued,
representing a further 32% take up
resulting in a total of 61% purchased.

During the financial year to 30 June
2014 the company did not sell any
tenement assets. The strategy of
divestment of non-core assets that we
have appliedin the past will continue
into the June 2015 year to ensure
adequate capital for core activities,
asis evidentin the sale and purchase
agreement signed on 14" July 2014
toselltheinterestintenements held
by PepinNiniResources Curnamona
Pty Ltd within the Uranium and
Mineral Resources Joint Venture

for a consideration of 52.3m.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

All core projects have the potential
and positive prospectivity for the
discovery of a significant mineral
deposit. PepinNini will seek to reduce
liabilities and recover value by
divesting non-core projects within
the portfolio, and replacing with
excitingand prospective projects.
PepinNiniis focused on these goals
with the aim of maximising and
increasing shareholder value.

PepinNinihas provedin the past that
we canrelease the value in our assets
and will continue to ensure that our
shareholdersreceive the maximum
possible returns.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

PepinNini Minerals Limited (the Company) and the board are committed to
achieving and demonstrating the highest standards of corporate governance.
The board continues to review the framework and practices to ensure they
meet the interests of shareholders. The Company and its controlled entities
together are referred to as the Group in this statement.

Therelationship between the board and senior management
is critical to the Group's long term success. The directors are
responsible to the shareholders for the performance of the
Company inboth the short and the longer term and seek to
balance sometimes competing objectives inthe best interests
of the Group as awhole. Their focus is to enhance the interests
of shareholders and other key stakeholders and to ensure the
Group is properly managed.

Adescription of the Company’s main corporate governance
practicesis set out below. All these practices, unless
otherwise stated, were in place for the entire year.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board operates inaccordance with the broad principles set
outinits charter. The charter includes details on the board'’s
composition, responsibilities, performance review and
evaluation procedures, ethical standards, and required
communications with shareholders.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Theboard currently performs its roles and function, consistent
with the above statement of its overall corporate governance
responsibility. The board is made up of two independent,
non-executive directors and two non-independent executive
directors. The Chairman is independent non-executive.

RESPONSIBILITIES

Responsibility for the Group's corporate governance rests
withthe board. The board's guiding principle in meeting this
responsibility is to act honestly, conscientiously and fairly,
inaccordance with the law, in the interests of PepinNini's
shareholders (with a view to building sustainable value for
them) and those of employees and other stakeholders.

The Board's broad functionis to:
a) chartstrategy and set financial budgets for the Company;

b) monitor the implementation and execution of strategy
and performance against financial budgets; and

) appointand oversee the performance of executive
management and generally to take and fulfil an effective
leadershiproleinrelation to the Company.

Power and authority in certain areas is specifically reserved
tothe Board - consistent with its function as outlined above.

These areas include:

a) compositionof the Board itself including the
appointment and removal of Directors;

b) oversight of the Group, includingits control and
accountability system;

c) appointmentandremoval of senior management and
the company secretary;

=

reviewing and overseeing systems of risk management
and internal compliance and control, codes of ethics and
conduct, and legal and statutory compliance;

D
—

monitoring senior management'’s performance and
implementation of strategy; and

f) approving and monitoring financial and other reporting
and the operation of committees.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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BOARD MEMBERS

Details of the members of the board, their experience,
expertise, qualifications, term of office and independent
status are set outin the Directors'report under the heading
“Information ondirectors”.

The board seeks to ensure that:

+ atanypointintime, its membership represents an
appropriate balance between directors with experience
and knowledge of the Group and directors with an external
or fresh perspective

* thesize of the boardis conducive to effective discussion
and efficient decision-making.

COMMITMENT

Theboard held12 board meetings during the year. The number
of meetings of the Company's board of directors and of each
board committee held during the year ended 30 June 2014, and
the number of meetings attended by each director is disclosed
onpage 36.

Itis the Company’s practice to allow its executive directors
toaccept appointments outside the Company with prior
written approval of the board. No appointments of this
nature were accepted during the year ended 30 June 2014.
The commitments of non-executive directors are considered
by the board prior to the directors'appointment to the board
of the Group and are reviewed each year as part of the annual
performance assessment.

Prior to appointment or being submitted for re-election, each
non-executive director is required to specifically acknowledge
that they have and will continue to have the time available to
discharge their responsibilities to the company.

CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Itis company policy that the directors declare their interests
in dealings with the Company which create a conflict of
interest, and take no part in decisions relating to themor

the preceding discussions. In addition, those directors do
notreceive any papers from the Group pertaining to those
dealings. There were no such conflicts of interest during the
30 June 2014 financial year.

INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL
ADVICE

With the prior approval of the Chairman, which may not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed, each director has the right
toseek independent legal and other professional advice
concerning any aspect of the Company's operations or
undertakings in order to fulfil their duties and responsibilities
as directors. Any costs incurred are borne by the Company.

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

The corporate governance charter adopted by the board
requires individual performance review and evaluation to be
conducted formally onan annualbasis. In addition, an external
review of the performance of directors and key executives is
planned for intervals not exceeding three years to ensure
independent professional scrutiny and benchmarking against
developing best market practice. The board acknowledges
that performance can always be enhanced and will continue to
seek and consider ways of further enhancing performance
bothindividually and collectively. PepinNini's practice
complies with the guidelines in this area.

CORPORATE REPORTING

The Managing Director and Financial Controller have made the
following certifications to the board:

» Thefinancialrecords for the Company for the full year have
been properly maintained in accordance with section 286
of the Corporations Act 2001.

The financial statements and associated notes comply

in all material respects with the Australian Accounting
Standards as required by section 296 of the Corporations
Act 2001.

* Thefinancial statements and associated notes give a
true and fair view, in all material respects of the financial
position of the Company as at 30 June 2014 and the
performance of the Company for the full year ended
30 June 2014 as required by section 297 of the
Corporations Act 2001.

* Thestatements made above regarding the integrity of the
financial statements have been formed on the basis of a
sound system of risk management and internal compliance
and control which, inall material respects, implements the
policies adopted by the Board of Directors.

* Therisk management andinternal compliance and control
systems of the Company, to the extent they relate to
financialreporting, are operating efficiently and effectively
inallmaterial respects.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



BOARD COMMITTEES

The Group's size is not sufficient to warrant the establishment
of separate committees for the nomination of directors, and
risk management. As an alternative the Group has formed a
corporate governance committee (currently consisting of all
directors) to assist with the building of its own internal
practices concerning good corporate governance. As part of
their regular Corporate Governance Committee meetings,

the directors discuss and action matters concerning:

* risk management;

* issuesrelevantto policies and practices for all Directors
and senior management; and

= anyrecommendations concerning the appointment of new
Directors and senior management.

Items of business that the committee will address at its
meetings are:

» Board and committee structure to facilitate a proper
review function by the board;

» corporaterisk assessment and compliance with internal
controls;

* review andevaluation of market practices and trends on
remuneration matters;

* the performance of senior management;

= development of suitable criteria such as skills,
qualifications and experience for Board candidates;

* identification and consideration of possible candidates; and

» review of the performance of each director and of senior
management each year inaccordance with the procedures
developed and adopted by the board.

Whilst items of risk management will be discussed on a
quarterly basis, items concerning remuneration and
nominations will be discussed annually.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee meets and reports to the board as
required, butin any case at least twice each year. Its members
are currently one executive director and two non-executive
directors. The committee has authority to seek any pertinent
information it requires from any employee or external party.
The Company's external auditor is invited to attend each
meeting of the committee.

Theresponsibilities of the audit committee include:

* overseethe existence and maintenance of internal controls
and accounting systems, including the implementation of
mandatory and non-mandatory accounting policies and
reporting requirements;

= oversee the financialreporting process, including reviewing
and reporting to the board on the accuracy of all financial
reports lodged with ASX which include the quarterly,
half-yearly and annual financial reports;

* recommendations to the board regarding the nomination,
removal and remuneration of the external auditors;

* review the existing external audit arrangements, including
ensuring that any non-audit services provided do not impair
auditor independence; and

» assessing the adequacy of external reporting for the needs
of shareholders.

In fulfilling its responsibilities, the audit committee:

= receivesregularreports from management and the
external auditors;

* meetswiththe externalauditors at least twice a year, or
more frequently if necessary;

= reviews any significant disagreements between the
auditors and management, irrespective of whether they
have beenresolved;

* meetsseparately with the external auditors at least twice
ayear without the presence of management;

» provides the external auditors with a clear line of direct
communication at any time to either the Chairman of the
audit committee or the Chairman of the board.

The audit committee has authority, within the scope of its
responsibilities, to seek any information it requires fromany
employee or external party.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee meets and reports to the board
annually. Its members are currently one executive director and
one non-executive director. Details of the directors'
attendance at the remuneration committee meetings is set out
inthe directors'report page 36. The remuneration committee
advises the board onremuneration and incentive policies and
practices generally and makes specificrecommendations on
remuneration packages and other terms of employment for
executive directors, other senior executives and
non-executive directors and employees.

Each employee signs a formal employment contract at the
time of their appointment covering arange of matters
including their duties, responsibilities and any entitlements on
termination. The contract refers to a specificjob description.
Thejob description and employee performance are reviewed
onanannual basis by executive management and where
necessary the job descriptionis revised in consultation with
therelevantemployee.

Further information ondirectors'and executives'
remuneration including principles used to determine
remunerationis set outin the Directors'report under
the heading Remuneration report.

RESPECT THE RIGHTS
OF SHAREHOLDERS

The board strives to communicate with shareholders both
regularly and clearly - both by electronic means and using
more traditional communication methods. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend and participate at general meetings.
The Group's auditors will always attend the annual general
meeting and are available to answer shareholders’ questions.
The Group's policies are outlined in the Company Policy and
Procedure Document available from the Company's website.
These policies ensure continuous disclosure of any
information concerning the Group that areasonable person
would expect to have amaterial effect on the price of the
Company's securities.

The Company Secretary has been nominated as the person
responsible for communications with the ASX. This role
includes responsibility for ensuring compliance with the
continuous disclosure requirements in the ASX Listing Rules
and overseeing and co-ordinating information disclosure to
the ASX, analysts, brokers, shareholders, the media and

the public.

Allinformation disclosed to the ASXis posted on the
Company's website as soon as possible after it is disclosed to
the ASX.When analysts are briefed on aspects of the Group's
operations, the material usedin the presentationis released
tothe ASX and posted on the Company’s website. Procedures
have been established for reviewing whether any price
sensitive information has been inadvertently disclosed and if
so, this information is also immediately released to the market.

Allshareholders who have requested, will receive a copy of the
Company's annual report. In addition, the Company provides
opportunities for shareholders to download from the website,
annual and quarterly reports.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Company and audit committee policy is to appoint
external auditors who clearly demonstrate quality and
independence. The performance of the external auditor is
reviewed annually and applications for tender of external
audit services are requested as deemed appropriate, taking
into consideration assessment of performance, existing value
and tender costs. Ernst & Young was appointed as the external
auditor in 2009 and continue in office for the year ended

30 June 2014.

An analysis of fees paid to the external auditors, including a
break down of fees for non-audit services, is provided in note
20 to the financial statements. It is the policy of the external
auditors to provide an annual declaration of their
independence to the audit committee.

The external auditor will attend the annual general meeting
and be available to answer shareholder questions about the
conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the
auditreport.
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RISK ASSESSMENT AND
MANAGEMENT

The board through the audit committee, is responsible

for ensuring there are adequate policies inrelation torisk
management, compliance and internal control systems. These
policies are available on the Company's website. In summary
the company policies are designed to ensure strategic,
operational, legal, reputation and financial risks are identified,
assessed effectively and efficiently managed and monitored
to enable achievement of the Group's business objectives.

Considerable importance is placed on maintaining a strong
control environment. There is an organisation structure with
clearly drawn lines of accountability and delegation of
authority. Adherence to the Code of Conduct is required at
alltimes and the board actively promotes a culture of quality
and integrity.

Detailed control procedures cover management accounting,
financial reporting, project appraisal, environment, health and
safety, IT security, compliance and other risk management
issues. The internal audit reporting group carries out regular
systematic monitoring of control activities and report to both
relevant operations and administrative management and the
audit committee. The company risk management policy and
the operation of the risk management and compliance system
is managed by the company risk management group consisting
of senior management and senior executives chaired by the
Managing Director. The board receives updates at monthly
directors'meetings on materialrisks that may impede meeting
operational and business objectives. The risk management
group is thenresponsible for implementing appropriate
controls to effectively manage those risks which are in turn
monitored by the board.

The environment, health and safety management
systems (EHSMS]

The Company recognises the importance of environmental
and work health and safety (WH&S) issues and is committed to
the highest levels of performance. To help meet this objective
the EHSMS was established to facilitate the systematic
identification of environmental and WH&S issues and to
ensure they are managed in a structured manner.

The systemallows the company to:

* monitor its compliance with all relevant legislation;

= continually assess and improve the impact of its operations
onthe environment;

* encourage employees to actively participate in the
management of environmental and WH&S issues;

= useenergyandotherresources efficiently; and

* encourage the adoption of similar standards by the Group's
principal suppliers and contractors

Information on compliance with significant environmental
regulations is set out in the directors'report.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has developed and adopted a detailed code of
conduct to guide directors and employees in the performance
of their duties. The Company has also developed and adopted a
formal code toregulate dealings in securities by directors and
senior management and their associates. This is designed to
ensure fair and transparent trading in accordance with both
the law and best practice.

The directors are satisfied that the Group has complied with
its policies on ethical standards, including trading in securities.

A copy of the Code is available on the Company's website.

DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company values diversity and recognises the benefits

it can bring to the organisation’s ability to achieve its goals.
Accordingly the Company has developed a diversity policy.
This policy outlines the Company’s diversity objectives in
relation to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity. It
includes requirements for the board to establish measurable
objectives for achieving diversity, and for the board to assess
annually both the objectives, and the Company’s progress in
achieving them.

Inaccordance with ASX Corporate Governance Principles,
the board has achieved the following objectives inrelation to
gender diversity.

Number %
Number of women employees
inthe whole organisation 6 40%
Number of women in senior
executive positions 2 67%
Number of women on the
board 1 25%
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ASX PRINCIPLES OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AND BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS
Subject to the exceptions outlined below, the Company has adopted the ‘Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations

(including 2010 Amendments’‘Guidelines’) applying to listed entities as published in 2010 by the ASX Corporate Governance Council.
Below is alisting of the Best Practice Recommendations that PepinNini Minerals Limited does not comply with.

Best practice Notification .
. Explanation of departure
recommendation of departure
Principle 211 ' Amajority of directorsare  Currently, two of the four directors satisfy the criteria for independence.

notindependent The Company considers that the expense involved in the recruitment and
employment of an additional independent director is not justified given the
present size and complexity of its operations. Together, the current directors

+ have abroadrange of experience, expertise, skills, qualifications and contacts
. relevant to the business of the Company and have demonstrated that they make
quality and independent judgments in the best interests of the Company onall
relevantissues. Procedures are in place whereby directors having a conflict of
interestinrelation to a particular item of business must exclude themselves

from the meeting before commencement of discussion of the topic.

Itisintended that, subject to the performance of the Company, new candidates
for the board will be considered.

Principle 2.4 A separate Nomination The board has not formed a separate Nomination Committee. The full Board
Committee has not been consists of four directors and has formed the view that it is more efficient for
formed the board as awhole to deal with matters that would otherwise be dealt with by

aNomination Committee. Strategies such as reviewing the skill base and
experience of existing directors and identification of attributes requiredin new
directorsareinplace and, if necessary, appropriate independent consultants
will be engaged to identify possible new candidates for the board.
Principle 4.2 * The Audit Committee * An Audit Committee has been established and has a formal charter. The Audit
' consists of three members; | Committee is not in compliance with the Guidelines as all members are not !
' one executive and two © non-executive directors however a majority of members are independent. To
© independent non-executive : safeguard the integrity of financial reporting, the Chairman of the Audit
+ directors + Committee is anon-executive director who is independent and regular sessions |
+ are held with the external auditors in the absence of management to discuss any
' issues or concerns the auditors may have. Separate audit committee meetings
‘ . areheld to finalise annual and half yearly financial reports before recommending :
‘ . approvalby the board.
Principle 8.2 The Remuneration ARemuneration Committee with a formal charter has been established. The

+ Committee consists of two : Remuneration Committee is not in compliance with the Guidelines inthat ithas
© members; one executive © less than three members and the majority of members are not independent. To
+ and one independent + safeguard the integrity of remuneration setting the Chair of the Remuneration
+ non-executive director - Committee is independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCORECARD

Comply

Principle1 | Lay solid foundations for management and oversight
11 Companies should establish the functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to senior executives " Yes

+ and disclose those functions.

1.2 © Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance of senior executives. ' Yes |

13 ' Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 1. . Yes |
Principle 2 ' Structure the board to add value ‘
21 ' Amajority of the Board should be independent directors. . No !
2.2 The chair should be anindependent director. Yes
2.3 ' Theroles of chair and chief executive officer should not be exercised by the same individual. " Yes
24 ' The Board should establish a nomination committee. " No
25 Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the board, its committees Yes

© andindividual directors. ! !

26 + Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 2. ' Yes
Principle 3 Promote ethical and responsible decision-making
31 + Companies should establish a code of conduct and disclose the code or a summary of the code as to: ' Yes

|+ thepractices necessary to maintainconfidence inthe Company'integrity U Yes

- thepractices necessary to take into account their legal obligations and the reasonable expectations | Yes

of their shareholders

-+ theresponsibility and accountability of individuals for reportingand investigating reportsof | Yes |

! unethical practices ! !

3.2 Companies should establish a policy concerning diversity and disclose the policy or a summary of that Yes
policy. The policy should include requirements for the board to establish measurable objectives for

© achieving gender diversity and for the board to assess annually both the objectives and progress in ! !

© achieving them.

33 Companies should disclose in each annual report the measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity Yes

' setbythe board inaccordance with the diversity policy and progress towards achieving them. ! !

34 © Companies should disclose in each annual report the proportion of women employees in the whole '\ Yes !

© organisation, women in senior executive positions and women on the board.

35 + Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 3. © Yes |
Principle 4 ' Safeguard integrity in financial reporting :
41 © The board should establish an audit committee. ' Yes
4.2 The audit committee should be structured so that it:
- comsistsonlyofrnon-executivedirectors | No

_+ comsistsofamajority of independent directors | Yes .

'+ ischairedby anindependent chair, whoisnot chairof theboard | Yes

C+ hesatleastthreemembers D Yes

43 ' The audit committee should have a formal charter. " Yes
4.4 © Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 4. ' Yes !
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCORECARD (continued)

‘ ‘ Comply ‘

Principle 5 | Make timely and balanced disclosure
51 . Companies should establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing Rule ' Yes

+ disclosure requirements and to ensure accountability at a senior level for that compliance and disclose

© those policies or a summary of those policies.

52 ' Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 5. ' Yes
Principle 6 Respect the rights of shareholders
6.1 : Companies should design a communications policy for promoting effective communication with ' Yes

© shareholders and encouraging their participation at general meetings and disclose their policy or

© asummary of that policy.

6.2 © Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 6. © Yes
Principle 7 : Recognise and manage risk |
71 + Companies should establish policies for the oversight and management of material business risks and ' Yes

+ disclose asummary of those policies.

7.2 ' Theboard should require management to design and implement the risk management and internal control | Yes !

' systemtomanage the company’s material business risks and report to it on whether those risks are being

' managed effectively. The board should disclose that management has reported to it as to the

+ effectiveness of the Company’s management of its material business risks.

73 Theboard should disclose whether it has received assurance from the chief executive officer " Yes

" (or equivalent) and the chief financial officer (or equivalent) that the declaration provided in accordance

© with section 295A of the Corporations Act is founded on a sound system of risk management and

" internal control and that the system s operating effectively in all material respects in relation to

© financial reporting risks.

74 © Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 7. ' Yes
Principle 8 ' Remunerate fairly and responsibly
81 © The board should establish a remuneration committee. " Yes
8.2 ' The remuneration committee should be structured so that it:

'+ consists of amajority of independent directors . No

'+ ischaired by anindependent chair " Yes !

'+ hasatleast three members. " No !

8.3 . Companies should clearly distinguish the structure of non-executive directors' remuneration from that . Yes

© of executive directors and senior executives.

84 © Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 8. " Yes
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

The directors of PepinNini Minerals Limited (“PepinNini” or the “Company”)
submit herewith the annual financial report of the consolidated group
consisting of PepinNini Minerals Limited and the entities it controlled (the
Group) at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2014. In order to
comply with the provisions of the Corporations Act 2001, the directors report
as follows:

DIRECTORS

The following persons were Directors of PepinNini Minerals
Limited during the whole of the financial year and up to the

date of thisreport:

Murray Bailey was appointed as Chairman, non-executive

RebeccaHolland-Kennedy
Robert (Wei) Sun
Phil Clifford

Directoron 1January 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year the principal continuing activities of the
Group consisted of exploration for:

Nickel
Copper
Gold
Lead
IronOre
Zinc

Uranium

Other mineral commodities.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been paid for the year ended 30 June 2014
or 30 June 2013.

No further dividends have been declared up to the date of
thisreport.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Group currently has an interest in 28 exploration
tenements covering approximately 14,317 km2in the
Curnamona and Musgrave Provinces of South Australia, the
Georgetown Inlier and Woolgar Goldfield of North Queensland
and the Robinson Range area of Midwest Western Australia. It
alsoholds an 83 hectare mining lease located in the Woolgar
Goldfield of North Queensland. The Company also has one
granted cateo (exploration lease), three granted minas (mining
lease) and eight applications for conversion of cateo into mina
covering a total of approximately 290 kms?in the Argentine
province of Salta.

Explorationhas progressedinall current project areas during
the financial period.
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1. Musgrave Province Nickel/Copper Project

PepinNiniis currently undertaking exploration programs
designed to target nickel-copper sulphide mineralisation and
base metal mineralisation in the Musgrave Province, South
Australia. PepinNinihas four granted exploration licences
(EL4780,EL5185,EL5220, EL4587) covering 5,672 km?and
six exploration licence applications (ELA118/96, ELA185/96,
ELA278/82,ELA491/94,ELA367/09,ELA368/09) covering
3,932 km?2 PepinNinisubsidiary NiCul Minerals Limited
(formerly PepinNini Resources Pty Limited) is earning a 51%
interestin EL5185 and ELA278/82 and ELA491/94 under
aFarm-inand Joint Venture Agreement with Rio Tinto Ltd
subsidiary Rio Tinto Exploration Pty Limited.

During the year, exploration activity focused on the
Cooperinnablock of EL4587, the Woodroffe licence EL5185
and the Mt Caroline licence EL5220. A total of 47 shallow
geochemical vacuum holes were drilled to test basement
lithologies on aregional grid patternand on tighter prospect
scale grid patterns in areas of anomalous geochemical results.
In addition 7 diamond holes were drilled for a total of 1,658m
totest potential Nickel-copper targets identified from
geochemical, structural and geophysical data. The diamond
holes intersected garnet-bearing quartzo-feldspathic gneiss
of the Birksgate Complex with localised intervals of minor
pyrite and pyrrhotite. A variety of sulphidic and graphitic
units were encountered within the drill holes at each of the
geophysical targets which conclusively explain the source of
the electromagnetic anomalism. Significant intersections of
up toTIm of sulphidic units with Copper up to 0.25% and Nickel
up to 745ppmwere intersected at the Marrawah Prospect on
Woodroffe tenement EL 5185.

PepinNini Minerals commenced a second collaboration with
CSIRO for Research and Development using innovative
geophysical techniques for the Musgrave Project. A fixed wing
electromagnetic survey system similar to that developed

by Anglo American for regional target generation whichis
understood to be instrumental in the 2013 discovery of the
Manchego Ni-Cu system in West Musgrave will be undertaken
with funding provided by government grant and company
contribution. Modelling and planning for the survey over the
Mt Caroline tenement EL 5220 and tenement application
EL185/96 Anerinna Hills was undertaken during the year.

The survey is planned for early 2015.

2. Curnamona Province Uranium, Base Metals
and Magnetite Project

Exploration within the Curnamona Province Project area, which
includes the Crocker Well Uranium Deposit, is being managed by
Sinosteel PepinNini Curnamona Management Pty Ltd (SPCM)
on behalf of the Joint Venture partners Sinosteel Corporation
(60%) and PepinNini Minerals (40%). The project comprises five
granted exploration licences covering approximately 3,778 km?
of the Curnamona Province of South Australia.

The Joint Venture has prioritized the investigation of the iron
ore potential of the Braemar Iron Formation. The EL4965 Mt
Victor covering approximately 1,218 km2 was granted in July
2012.Mt Victor contains potential for a very large magnetite
deposit within the Braemar Iron Formation. An aeromagnetic
survey of approximately 2,462 line kilometres of datawas
carried outin September 2012. In May and June 2013, a drilling
program of 17 boreholes and 2,978m was carried out covering
4.3 kms strike length of the 40 km outcropping Braemar
Formation. During the year to 30 June 2014, results from Davis
Tube Recovery (DTR) tests on the samples from the drilling in
the previous year were received showing concentrates
averaging 64.3% Fe with mass recovery of 23.5% with low
levels of alumina, phosphorous and sulphur.

The signing of a Sale and Purchase agreement was announced
on14 July 2014 whereby joint venture partner Sinosteel
Uranium SA Pty Ltd will purchase PepinNini's 40% interest in
thejoint venture for $2.3m.

3. North Queensland Project

PepinNini hold five tenements in North Queensland which cover
489km?and are prospective for uranium and gold. The Oasis
Project contains shear hosted uraninite mineralisation over a
strike extent of 300m with an average grade of 0.1% U,0, as
delineated by Esso Exploration and Production Australia Inc
(1977-1979) and Glengarry (2005/2006). Subsequent work was
undertaken on this prospect by Mega Uranium (2007-2010).
During the year, PepinNini continued to maintain the project
tenements and evaluate the existing data.

4. Robinson Range Iron Ore Project

The Robinson Range Project comprises seven tenements that
cover approximately 700km?. PepinNinihas a 50% interest in the
iron ore contained within three tenements and a 40% interest

in the iron ore contained within the other four tenements and
manages exploration on behalf of the Joint Venture partners.

Thejoint venture has delineated an Inferred Mineral Resource
for PNN Area C of 17.7million tonnes grading 49.7% Fe in the
Inferred Category including 4.3million tonnes grading 55.2%
FeintheInferred Category as announced on 6th June, 2012.

During the year the joint venture partners continued to
maintain the project tenements and evaluate the resource
estimate for JORC 2012 compliance.
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5. Argentina - Salta Project

PepinNini has one granted cateo (exploration leases), three
granted minas (mining leases) and eight applications for a
cateo to mina conversion covering approximately 290 kms?2in
the Argentine province of Salta. The Salta Project comprises
two separate areas designated as Santa Ines and Chivinar.

Salta Province is recognised as one of the most mining friendly
provinces in Argentina and is a province where mining rights
arewellregulated. The geology is prospective for copper-gold
porphyries, precious and base-metal epithermal systems and
breccia-complexes associated with the Andean volcanic belt.
Several significant copper-gold porphyry and epithermal silver
deposits are currently being progressed by other companies to
developmentinthe area.

The prospect is situated approximately 80km to the southeast
along the same lineament as BHP's giant Escondida Cu-Au
porphyry (~5 billion tonnes at 1% Cu and 0.25 g/t Au) which also
was deposited contemporaneously with the Santa Ines
Formation event during the Late Eocene-Oligocene.

Explorationwas carried out on the Santa Ines Project during
thereporting year incorporating, field mapping and sampling,
geochemical soil sampling using a portable field XRF and
induced polarisation (IP) geophysical surveying. The program
covered two phases of exploration firstly in December 2013
and subsequently in April 2014. Two targets, El Obsequio (the
Gift) and La Recompensa (the Reward) were delineated and
tested. Copper and gold results highlight coincident anomalism
in the vicinity of the El Obsequio prospect, with maximum
value of 228ppm Cuand13.7 ppb Au present in soil samples.
This expands on positive results from stage 1 field activities,
from which PepinNinireported maximum concentrations of
3.25% Cu, 0.8g/t Au, 91.1 ppm Mo 12.5 g/t silver, in rock chip
samples. No interesting geochemical distributions were
identified from soil geochemical sampling over the La
Recompensa prospect, although a single sample contained
39.1ppb Au. Evaluation of further potential for drilling IP
anomalies and anomalous base metal geochemistry at El
Obsequio continues together with assessment of the current
exploration portfolio held by PepinNini.

Further informationrelating to the Company's projects and
future directions has been made publicly available on the
company's web site at www.pepinnini.com.au

CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS

There was no significant change in the state of affairs of
the Group during the financial year, other than that referred
toabove.

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

PepinNiniMinerals Limited announced on 14 July 2014 the
signing of a Sale and Purchase Agreement for the sale of the
Company's 40% interest in the Curnamona Project joint
venture tojoint venture partner Sinosteel Uranium SA Pty Ltd
fors2.3m.

In August 2014, PepinNini Minerals Limited successfully raised
$500,000 though the sale of part of the shortfall relating

to anentitlements issue during the financial year. PepinNini
Minerals Limited announced a pro-rata non-renounceable
entitlementissue of shares on 24 April 2014. The issue, under
aprospectus, was two shares for every three shares held by
eligible shareholders. The offer closed on 22 May 2014 and the
shortfall was available for 3months until 22 August 2014.

In September 2014 PepinNini Minerals Limited announced the
signing of a purchase option deed with Phosphate Australia
(ASX:POZ) for exploration of the Manchego project in

the West Musgrave region of Western Australia. Aninitial
consideration of $100,000 has been paid to allow PepinNini
tostart exploration of this project.

There has beenno other matter or circumstance that has
arisen since 30 June 2014 that has significantly affected, or
may significantly affect:

a) the Group's operations in future financial years, or
b) theresults of those operations in future financial years, or

c) the Group's state of affairs in future financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND
EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Group intends to continue actively exploring its
tenements for mineral potential. Field exploration, drilling and
geophysical programs are in the approval and planning process
for the Musgrave Province projects and are planned for the
Argentinean project. The programs are designed to investigate
targets with potential for the discovery of amajor new mineral
deposit. The company continues to evaluate new areas for
potential projects.

Further information on the likely developments in the
operations of the Group and the expectedresults of
operations have not been included in this annual report
because the directors believe it would be likely toresultin
unreasonable prejudice to the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

The mining tenements granted to the Group pursuant to
Mining Acts are granted subject to various conditions which
include standard environmental requirements. The Group
adheres to these conditions and the directors are not aware
of any contraventions of these requirements.
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INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

The particulars of the directors of the Company during or since the end of the financial year are:

Name Particulars

Murray Bailey Qualifications: BEng(Civil), MAICD

34 - Chairman

Experience: Murray Bailey was appointed a director and Chairman of the
company on I* January 2014. He is a civil/mining engineer with more than
30years experience in the mining industry in both mining operations and
corporate activities. He retired after three years from the position of Chief
Executive Officer with Yancoal Ltd in July 2013. He had served previously as
Chief Operations Officer of New Hope Corporation and Executive General
Manager of Wesfarmers Resources Limited. His earlier experience was with
Shell Coaland CSR Limited in coal mines in NSW and Queensland and in London
as Manager of Mining and Projects for Shell Coal International. He held various
mining operational positions with Curragh QLD Mining at Blackwater in QLD.

Rebecca Holland-
Kennedy

- Executive Director
-Managing Director

Qualifications: BSc(Geology), MAusIMM, BArts(Humanities), MAICD

Experience: Rebecca Holland-Kennedy was a founding director of PepinNini
Minerals Limited and has been aboard member and company secretary since
2002.She has more than 30 years' experience in exploration company
administration and data management. She has held positions with Amax/
BHP Joint venture, Robertson Research, Macquarie University, NSW
Department of Mines and Energy as well as acting as exploration and data
management consultant to AGL, BHP, AGIP, Shell, CRA, Caltex and
Meekatharrra Minerals Limited. She is a Director of PepinNini Resources Pty !
Ltd, PepinNini Robinson Range Pty Ltd, PepinNini Resources Queensland Pty -
Ltd and PepinNini Minerals International Pty Ltd.

Robert (Wei) Sun
-Non-Executive
Director

Qualifications: M.Econ(Commerce), M.Econ(IEM)

Experience: Robert (Wei) Sun was appointed a director of the companyon
December 1°t2011. He is aresource investment analyst with over 10 years
experience ininternational trade and the resource industries of China,
Canadaand Australia. He has held positions as a business manager, resource |
and project analyst with major Chinese and Australian companies. Robert has
exceptional communication skills being able to communicate on a corporate
and technical levelin Chinese and English. He has maintained a close
association with major Chinese companies involved in Mineral Resources and
has established contacts within the Asian investment sector.

Phil Clifford
- Executive Director
- Technical Director

Qualifications: BSc(Geology), MAuslmm

Experience: Phil Clifford was appointed a director of the company on

April 9t 2013. Phil Clifford has been Exploration Manager for PepinNini
Minerals Limited since 2004 in charge of the South Australian Musgrave

and Curnamona Projects and the company's West Australian iron ore joint
venture project at Robinson Range. Before joining PepinNini Minerals
Limited he was a project geologist and team leader with CRA Exploration and
Rio Tinto Exploration for 15 years in projects exploring for magmatic nickel
sulphide, PGE's, gold, diamonds, base metals, uranium and coal.
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DIRECTORSHIPS OF OTHER
LISTED COMPANIES

Directorships of other listed companies held by directors in
the 3yearsimmediately before the end of the financial year
are as follows:

Name Compan Period of Stock
pany directorship Exchange
Phil Clifford ' - ' - ' 1
Rebecca b . b
Holland- : : :
Kennedy ! ‘ ‘
Robert ©IMX ' Mar2012  © ASX
(Wei) Sun © Resources ' topresent
L : ‘
+ Ferrowest  Oct2012 ASX
+ Ltd + topresent

Murray Bailey | - - x
(commenced1 1 1
January 2014)

DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS

The following table sets out each director's relevant interest
inshares, andrights or options in shares of the Group as at the
date of thisreport.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED

Fully paid
orecors | nanyshav aptions
(Number]
RebeccaHolland-Kennedy 55,356,488 18,923,549
Phil Clifford 401,000 6,700,000
Robert (Wei) Sun 187,818 75,128
Murray Bailey 1,000,000 7,500.000

SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED
TO DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

During the financial year share options were granted to
Murray Bailey as executive incentive options as part of his
remuneration package as a Director. Details are presented
inthe table below.

Number Exercise
Issuing | of shares | Class of xerd Expiry date
. price of .
entity under shares . of options
. option
option
PepinNini 31
Minerals December
Limited 2,500,000 Ordinary Scps 2015
PepinNini !
Minerals 30 June
Limited 2,500,000 Ordinary 6cps 2016
PepinNini 3]
Minerals December
Limited 2,500,000 Ordinary 7cps 2016

SHARES UNDER OPTION OR ISSUED
ON EXERCISE OF OPTIONS

Details of unissued shares or interests under option as at the
date of thisreport are:

Number Exerci
Issuing | of shares | Class of erese Expiry date
. price of .
entity under shares . of options
. option
option

PepinNini
Minerals !
Limited 2,500,000 Ordinary 4cps  1June2016
PepinNini !
Minerals !
Limited 2,500,000 Ordinary 6cps  1June 2016
PepinNini !
Minerals !
Limited 1,600,000 Ordinary  12.5cps 1June 2016 :
PepinNini 31
Minerals December
Limited 2,500,000 Ordinary Scps 2015 ¢
PepinNini
Minerals 30June
Limited 2,500,000 Ordinary 6cps 2016
PepinNini 31
Minerals December
Limited 2,500,000 Ordinary 7cps 2016
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SHARES UNDER OPTION OR ISSUED
ON EXERCISE OF OPTIONS (continued)

The holders of these options do not have the right, by virtue of the
option, to participate inany share issue or interest issue of the
company or of any other body corporate or registered scheme.

There were no shares or interests issued during or since the
end of the financial year as aresult of exercise of an option.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Information about the remuneration of directors and senior
management is set out in the remuneration report of this
directors'report, on pages 37 to 46.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Justin Nelson was appointed company secretary 6 May 2013.

Qualifications and experience of Justin Nelson are
detailed below.

Mr Nelsonwas formerly ASX's State Manager, SA and
Manager, Listings (Adelaide). He holds a Bachelor of
Laws degree and is a Principal with DMAW Lawyers.

DIRECTORS MEETINGS

The following table sets out the number of directors’
meetings (including meetings of committees of directors)
held during the financial year and the number of meetings
attended by each director (while they were a director or
committee member).

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REMUNERATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEE AUDIT COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible
Directors | Held to Attended | Held to Attended | Held to Attended | Held to Attended
Attend Attend Attend Attend
Rebecca
Holland-
Kennedy* C12 12 12 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 1
Phil
Clifford ' 12 12 12 1 - - 2 - - 1 - -
Robert '
(Wei) Sun* 12 12 12 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 1
Murray :
Bailey* Co12 7 5 1 - - 2 1 1 1 - -

*audit and remuneration committee members
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REMUNERATION REPORT - AUDITED

This remuneration report sets out remuneration information
for PepinNini Minerals Limited's directors and other key
management personnel of the group.

Role of Remuneration committee

The Remuneration committee is acommittee of the board.
Itis primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the boardon:

* non-executive director fees
 executive remuneration (directors and other executives) and

* theoverarching executive remuneration framework and
incentive plan.

Their objective is to ensure that remuneration policies and
structures are fair and competitive and aligned with the
long-terminterests of the Company. In doing this, the
Remuneration Committee seeks advice as required from
independent remuneration consultants.

The corporate governance statement on pages 23 to 30
provides further information on the role of this committee.

Theremunerationreport s set out under the following
main headings:

a) Principles used to determine the nature and amount
of remuneration

b) Executive remuneration policy and framework
c) Use of remuneration consultants

d) Voting and comments made at the company's
2013 Annual General Meeting

D

—h

) Performance of PepinNini Minerals Limited
) Details of remuneration

oa

) Service agreements
h) Sharebased compensation

The information provided in this remuneration report has been
audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Corporations
Act 2001.

A) Principles used to determine the nature and
amount of remuneration

The objective of the Group's executive reward framework

is to ensure reward for performance is competitive and
appropriate for the results delivered. The framework aligns
executive reward with achievement of strategic objectives
and the creation of value for shareholders, and conforms with
market practice for delivery of reward. The board ensures that
executive reward satisfies the following key criteria for good
reward governance practices;

» Competiveness andreasonableness

* Acceptability to shareholders

 Performance linkage/alignment of executive compensation
* Transparency

» (Capitalmanagement

The framework provides a mix of fixed and variable pay, and a
blend of short and long-term incentives.

Theboard has established aremuneration committee which
provides advice onremuneration and incentive policies and
specificrecommendations on remuneration packages and
other terms of employment for executive directors, other
senior executives and non-executive directors. The Corporate
Governance Statement provides further information on the
role of this committee.

Non-executive directors

Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the
demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of, the
directors. Non-executive directors' fees and payments are
reviewed annually by the Board and non-executive directors
areremunerated for their services as Directors by a fixed sum
and not acommission on a percentage of profits or operating
revenue. It may not be increased except at a general meeting
inwhich particulars of the proposed increase have been
provided in the notice convening the meeting to Shareholders.
7,500,000 share options were awarded to non-executive
directors during 2014 (2013: 0). Directors are also entitled
toreasonable travel, accommodation and other expenses
incurred in attending Company or Board meetings, or meetings
of any Committee engaged in the Group's business.

Directors’ fees

The company’s constitution states that Directors are to be
paid out of Company funds as remuneration for their services.
At the Annual General Meeting of the company in 2004, it was
resolved to fix the annual aggregate amount of fees payable to
its Directors for director's duties at $125,000.
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A) Principles used to determine the nature and
amount of remuneration (continued)]

Directors’ retirement benefits

Any Director may be paid aretirement benefit as determined
by the Board, consistent with the Corporations Act and the
ListingRules.

ADirector is disallowed from voting on any contract or
arrangement in which he or she has directly or indirectly any
material interest, if it willbe contrary to the Corporations Act.
If sucha Director does vote, his or her vote will not be counted,
nor will his or her attendance be counted in the quorum present
at the meeting. Either or both of these prohibitions may be
relaxed or suspended to any extent by ordinary resolution passed
ata General Meeting if permitted by the Corporations Act.

B) Executive remuneration policy and framework

In determining executive remuneration, the board aims to
ensure that remuneration practices are:

» Competitive and reasonable, enabling the company to
attractandretainkey talent

+ Alignedto the company’s strategic and business objectives
and the creation of shareholder value

* Transparent, and
* Acceptable toshareholders.

The executive remuneration framework has three
components:

* Basepayandbenefits, including superannuation,
* Short-term performance incentives, and

* Long-termincentives through participation in the PepinNini
Employee Option Plan

Executive remuneration mix

In accordance with the company's objective to ensure that
executive remuneration is aligned to company performance,
apercentage(5%) of the employees base pay is available as
bonus based on achieving both personal and company key
performance indicators. These indicators are decided upon
at the beginning of the financial year and assessed at the end
of the financial year. The company indicator is a share price
target and the executive indicators relate to leadership,
teamwork, competency and proficiency.

Base pay and benefits

Executivesreceive their base pay and benefits structuredas a
total employment cost (TEC) package which may be delivered
as a combination of cash and prescribed non-financial benefits
at the executives'discretion.

Executives are offered a competitive base pay that comprises
the fixed component of pay and rewards. Base pay for
executives isreviewed annually to ensure the executive's pay
is competitive with the market. An executive's pay is also
reviewed on promotion.

There areno guaranteed pay increases included inany
executives'contracts.

Executives donotreceive any benefits.

Superannuation

Employees receive Superannuation Guarantee payments
based on the statutory percentage of base salary.No other
retirement benefits are provided directly by the group unless
approved by shareholders.

Short-term incentives

Executives have the opportunity to earnanannual short
termincentive (ST)if predefined targets are achieved.

The executive teamhave an STl opportunity of 5% of TEC.
The Company target is share price for the company and is
reviewed annually. The executive targets relate to leadership,
teamwork, competency and proficiency.

Theremuneration committee is responsible for assessing
whether KPIs are met. The committee has the discretion to
adjust short-termincentives downwards in light of
unexpected or unintended circumstances.

Long-term incentives

Long-termincentives are provided to certain employees via
the PepinNini Minerals Limited Employee Option Plan which
was approved by shareholders at the 2011 Annual General
Meeting.

The PepinNini Minerals Limited Employee Share Option Plan
is designed to provide long-term incentives for executives
todeliver long-term shareholder returns. Under the plan,
participants are granted options which only vest if the
employees are stillemployed by the company at the end of
the vesting period. Participationin the planis at the board's
discretion and no individual has a contractual right to
participate inthe plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits.

The vesting conditions are determined by the board as a
long term employment performance incentive specific to
the employee and executive. Once vested, the options are
exercisable at points over a period of years determined
by the board. Options are granted under the plan for no
consideration.

Share trading policy

The trading of shares issued to participants under any of the
company's employee equity plans is subject to, and conditional
upon, compliance with the company's employee share trading
policy. The policy was issued to the ASX and all shareholders
on 29t December 2010.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



C) Use of remuneration consultants

No remuneration consultants have beenused to review
existingremuneration policies.

D) Voting and comments made at the company’s
2012 Annual General Meeting

PepinNiniMinerals Limited received 99% of “yes" votes
onitsremunerationreport for the 2013 financial year.

The company did not receive any specific feedback at

the AGM or throughout the year onits remuneration practices.

E) Performance of PepinNini Minerals Limited

The tables below set out summary information about the
Group's earnings and movements in shareholder wealth for
the five years to June 2014:

30 June 2014 |30 June 2013 |30 June 2012 |30 June 2011 {30 June 2010

$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Revenue 805 861 1,042 872 455
Net (loss)/ profit before tax (3.634) (1.357) (1,764) (2,591) (1136)
Net (loss)/ profit after tax (3,641) (1181) (1.346) (2,006) (960)
Attributable to members of
PepinNini Minerals Limited (3,641) (1181) (1,346) (2,006) (960)

30 June 2014 |30 June 2014 {30 June 2012 |30 June 2011 |30 June 2010
Share price at start of year 50.02 $0.04 s0.1 5014 50.35
Share price at end of year $0.02 $0.02 $0.04 s0.11 s0.14

Interim dividend = - - - -

Final dividend - > - - -

Basic (loss) / earnings per share (2.9) cps (1.0) cps (1.5) cps (2.4) cps (1.2) cps
Diluted (loss) / earnings per share (2.9) cps (1.0) cps (1.5) cps (24) cps (1.2) cps
Short termincentive (% of maximum) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1.06% 1.66%

The Performance Incentive Program for the 2013/14 year is
based on the achievement of Corporate Objectives as well as
Individual Objectives. The Corporate objectives include QHSE
(quality, health, safety and environmental) targets.

The performance measures do not take into account the
performance of the Company over more than the current year.
The payment of the short term incentive is at the discretion of
the Board. The short-term incentive (Cash Bonus) as a
percentage of the maximum available and the earnings per
share for the current year and the previous four years are set
outinthetable above.
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F) Details of remuneration

Amounts of remuneration

Details of the remuneration of the directors, the key

management personnel of the Group (as definedin AASB

124 Related Party Disclosures) and specified executives of
PepinNini Minerals Limited and the PepinNini Minerals Limited
Group are set out in the following tables. The key management
personnel of the Group are the directors of PepinNini Minerals
Limited (see page 34).

Key management personnel of the Group

POST LONG SHARE
SHORT TERM EMPLOYMENT TERM TERMINATION BASED
2014 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS BENEFIT BENEFITS BENEFITS PAYMENTS TOTAL
Cash Non Long o
Name salary CEEl monetary | Other Super_— service Termmqhon Options Total
bonus . annuation benefits
and fees benefits leave

S S Sio%i LT S S S A s
Directors
Rebecca
Holland- : :
Kennedy 151,250 - - - 18,500 - - - 169,750
Robert (Wei)Sun | 35,393 - - - 3,607 - - - 39,000
Phil Clifford 3 ‘ 3
(part time from | ! !
1April 2014) 140137 - - - 12,963 - - 7,636 160,736
Murray Bailey ;
(commenced] ! !
January 2014) 26,030 - - - 2,408 - - 37,692 66,130
Total Key
Management !
Personnel
Compensation | 1 1 |
(Group) 1 352,810 - - - 37,478 | - - 45,328 435,616
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Key management personnel of the Group (continued)

POST LONG SHARE
2013 LRI EMPLOYMENT | TERM | TSRMINATION | ‘gasep | ToTaL
BENEFIT BENEFITS PAYMENTS
Cash Non Long N
Name salary CEE monetary | Other Super_— service Termma_mon Options Total
bonus . annuation benefits
and fees benefits leave
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, RS2 SN SO SO SN SO AU SO 2 S
Directors : ;
RebeccaHolland- ; ; !
Kennedy 168,776 - - - 15,557 - - - 1184333 !
Robert (Wei) Sun 36,697 ! . - - 3,303 ! - - -1 40,000 !
Phil Clifford : ;
(commenced9 ! | |
April 2013) 163,221 - - - 14,690 ! - -+ 30733 ' 208,644
Norman Kennedy ' '
(ceased 14 March ! | |
2013) 139,745 - - - 13,500 - 91,765 : -+ 245,010 :
Christopher :
Lambert (ceased
22 November '
2012) 15,778 - - - - - - 15778
Total Key . E E E E E E
Management i ; ; ; ; ; ;
Personnel . .
Compensation | | : : i i i
(Group) 524,217 - - - 47,050 - 91,765 . 30,733 : 693,765 !
The percentage of remuneration to key management
personnel that consists of options:
2014 2013

Phil Clifford E 48% | 147% |
Murray Bailey 570% -
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Therelative proportions of remuneration that are linked to
performance and those that are fixed are as follows:

NAME BEMUNERATION AT RISK - STI AT RISK - LTI
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Executive directors of PepinNini Minerals Limited
Rebecca Holland-Kennedy ©100% @ 100% - - - -
Robert (Wei) Sun ©100% @ 100% ! - - - -
Phil Clifford (commenced 9 April 2013) ©100% @ 100% ! - - - -
Norman Kennedy (ceased 14 March 2013) - 100% ! - - - -
Murray Bailey (commenced1January 2014) 100% - - - - -
Phil Clifford (Exploration manager to 8 April 2013) ! -1 100% ! N/A N/A N/A 3

F) Details of remuneration (continued)

No director or member of senior management appointed
during the period received any payments during the year
other thanthose detailed above.

G) Service agreements

Rebecca Holland-Kennedy (Executive Director - Managing
Director) has a contract for service, details of which are
outlined as follows:

* Sheisrequiredtowork five days a week;

* Hercurrentsalary inclusive of superannuationis
5200,000 per year;

* Her contract commenced on 9 April 2013;

= Termination may be made by either party on providing six
months' notice;

» Termination benefits payable upon termination to
Mrs Holland-Kennedy are sixmonths' pay.

Phil Clifford (Executive Director - Technical & Exploration
Manager) has a contract for service, details of which are
outlined as follows:

* Heisrequiredtowork five days a week;

* Hiscurrentsalary inclusive of superannuation
is $180,000 per year;

» His contract commenced on 9 April 2013;

» Termination may be made by either party on providing one
months' notice;

= Termination benefits payable upon termination to
Mr Clifford are three months’ pay.

Mr Clifford commenced part-time employment from
1April 2014 for personal reasons. His salary is pro-rata
from his employment contract for two days per week.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



H) Share based compensation

Options

Anemployee share option scheme has been established
whereby PepinNiniMinerals Limited may, at the discretion
of management, grant options over the ordinary shares of
PepinNini Minerals Limited to directors and executives as
part of aremuneration package offered for employment.
The options so issued are for nil consideration and have
variable exercise prices and maturity dates, i.e. last date
to exercise the options.

The terms and conditions of each grant of options affecting
remuneration in the previous, this or future reporting periods
areas follows:

Date vested and

Value per option at

Grant date exercisable Expiry date Exercise price grant date
(1)10September 2012 | 10September2012 31 December 2014 40,055 | 40,0194 |
(2)8 April 2013 ' 1June 2013 ' 1June 2016 $0.04 : $0.0104
(3)8April 2013 * 1November 2013 ' 1June 2016 $0.06 $0.0047
(4)8 April 2013 ' 1June 2014 ' 1June 2016 $0125 $0.0005
(5)1January 2014 ' 1January 2014 ' 31December 2015 $0.05 $0.00
(6)1January 2014 © Tuly 2014 ' 30June 2016 $0.06 $0.0085
(7)1January 2014 ' 1January 2015 © 31December 2016 $0.7 $0.0132 !

Options granted under the plan carry no dividend or voting rights.

Each optionis convertible into one ordinary share on exercise.
Options may be exercised at any time from the date of vesting
to the date of their expiry.

Details of options over ordinary shares in the Group provided
asremuneration to each director of PepinNini Minerals
Limited and each of the key management personnel of the
Group are set out below. Further information on the options is
setoutinnote 26 to the financial statements.

(1), (2-7) Options in this series are entitled to beneficial interest
atvesting date only if the recipients continue to be employed
by the company at that date. (1) Employee ceased employment
7 June 2013.

Holders of the options granted are as follows, (1) - Todd
Williams, (2-4) - Phil Clifford and (5-7) - Murray Bailey.

Options (5-7) were granted during the year and have been
determined as having the following values

(5) 0 zero
(6)$0.0085 per option, a total value of $21,234
(7)$0.0132 per option, a total value of $32,917
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2014

Balance Balance
Name at start of EIEIE 4 Exercised Other at end of VESte.d and Unvested
compensation change exercisable
the year the year
! (#) (#) ! (#) (#) ! (#) ! (#) ! (#)
Directors of PepinNini
Minerals Limited
Options | | | | | | | |
RebeccaHolland-Kennedy - - - - - - -
Robert (Wei) Sun - - - - - - -
Phil Clifford ' 6,600,000 - - -1 6,600,000 @ 6,600,000 : -
Murray Bailey 3 - 7500000 ! 3 ' 7500,000 : 2,500,000 ' 5,000,000
Other key management
personnel of the Group
2013
Balance Balance
Name at start of I @ Exercised Sy at end of Vesteld and Unvested
compensation change exercisable
the year the year
! (#) (#) (#) ! (#) (#) ! (#) (#)
Directors of PepinNini : : 1 1
Minerals Limited ! ! ! !
Options : : : :
RebeccaHolland-Kennedy - - - - - - -
Robert (Wei) Sun - - - - - - -
Phil Clifford ' 6,600,000 - - -1 6,600,000 @ 2,500,000 @ 4,100,000 !
Norman Kennedy - - - - -
Other key management
personnel of the Group

6,850,000 options were granted to key management personnel
and employees of PepinNini Minerals Limited in the year ended

30 June 2013 (nil - 2012)

7,500,000 options were granted to directors of PepinNini
Minerals Limited during the year ended 30 June 2014.

There were 33,098,677 unissued ordinary shares held

No option holder has any right under the options to participate
in any other share issue of the Group.

No ordinary shares in the company were issued as aresult of

by directors of PepinNini Minerals Limited and other key
management personnel of the group under option at the

date of thisreport.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED

the exercise of remuneration options by directors of PepinNini
Minerals Limited and other key management personnel of the
Group for either the 30 June 2014 or 30 June 2013 financial year.



1) Share holdings

The number of shares in the company held during the financial
year by each director of PepinNini Minerals Limited and other
key management personnel of the Group, including their
personally related parties, are set out below. There were no
shares granted during the reporting period as compensation.

~
(3]

2014
Balance at the start of R during_the Other changes during | Balance at the end of
Name year on the exercise of
the year . the year the year
options
(#) | (#) (#) | (#) |

Directors of PepinNini
Minerals Limited
Ordinary shares
RebeccaHolland Kennedy 36,273,892 - 19,082,596 55,356,488
Robert (Wei) Sun 112,690 - 75128 187,818
Phil Clifford 401,000 - - 401,000
Murray Bailey (commenced ! !
January 2014) - - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Other key management
personnel of the Group
Ordinary shares

Close family members of the Key management personnel also hold 3,777,779 shares at balance date in their own names.

2013
Balance at the start of R during_the Other changes during | Balance at the end of
Name year on the exercise of
the year . the year the year
options
(#) | (#) (#) | (#) |

Directors of PepinNini
Minerals Limited
Ordinary shares
RebeccaHolland Kennedy 9,987,805 - 26,286,087 36,273,892
Robert (Wei) Sun 30,000 - 82,690 12,690
Phil Clifford (commenced 9
April 2013) 1,241,800 - (840,800) 401,000
Norman Kennedy (ceased 14
March 2013) 9,680,000 - (9,680,000) -
Christopher Lambert (ceased ' ' ' '
22 November 2012) ; - - - -
Other key management
personnel of the Group
Ordinary shares
Phil Clifford (Exploration
Manager to 8 April 2013) 1,241,800 - (840,800) 401,000
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J) Other transactions

PepinNini Minerals Limited received a loan of $200,000 from
adirector (RebeccaHolland-Kennedy) during the financial year,
the loan attracts no interest. (2013 Nil)

Indemnification of officers and auditors

PepinNini Minerals Limited has entered into standard deeds
of indemnity and access with each of the directors. By these
deeds, the Company has undertaken, consistent with the
Corporations Act 2001, to indemnify each director in certain
circumstances and to maintain directors'and officers’
insurance cover in favour of the director for sevenyears
after the director has ceased to be a director. The Company
has paid a premium for the period 13 October 2013 to

13 October 2014 to insure the directors and officers of the
Company.Inaccordance with the terms and conditions of the
insurance policy, the amount of the premium paid has not been
disclosed onthe basis of confidentiality, which is permitted
under section 300(9) of the Corporations Act 2001.

To the extent permitted by law, the company has agreed to
indemnify its auditors, Ernst & Young as part of the terms of its
audit engagement against claims by third parties arising from the
audit (for an unspecified amount). No payment has been made to
indemnify Ernst & Young during or since the financial year.

Proceedings on behalf of the Company

There are no proceedings on behalf of the Company at the
date of thisreport.

No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the
Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf
of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which
the Company is a party, for the purpose of taking responsibility
on behalf of the company for all or part of those proceedings.

No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf
of the Company with leave of the Court under section 237 of
the Corporations Act 2001.

Non-audit services

Details of amounts paid or payable to the auditor Ernst &
Young for non-audit services provided during the year by the
auditor are outlined innote 20 to the financial statements.

The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit
services, during the year, by the auditor (or by another person
or firm on the auditor’s behalf) is compatible with the general
standard of independence for auditors imposed by the
Corporations Act 2001.

The directors are of the opinion that the services as disclosed
innote 20 to the financial statements do not compromise the
external auditor's independence, based on advice received
from the Audit Committee, for the following reasons:

* allnon-audit services have beenreviewed and approved to
ensure that they do not impact the integrity and objectivity
of the auditor, and

* none of the services undermine the general principles
relating to auditor independence as set out in Code of
Conduct APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Accounting Professional & Ethical
Standards Board, including reviewing or auditing the auditor's
ownwork, acting ina management or decision-making
capacity for the company, acting as advocate for the
company or jointly sharing economic risks and rewards.

Auditor
Ernst & Young continued in office in accordance with section
327 of the Corporations Act 2001.

Auditor’s independence declaration

The auditor’s independence declaration is included on page 47
of the annualreport.

This directors'report s signedin accordance with a resolution
of directors made pursuant to s.298(2) of the Corporations
Act 2001.

On behalf of the directors

%A Ll A - Komnegd

Rebecca Holland Kennedy
Managing Director
Adelaide, 18 September 2014
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

Ernst & Young Tel: +61 8 8417 1600
121 King William Street Fax: +61 8 B417 1775
Adelaide SA 5000 Australia ey.com

PO 71 Adelaide SA 5
Building a better GPO Box 1271 Adelaide 54 5001
working world

Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of PepinNini
Minerals Ltd

In relation to our audit of the financial report of PepinNini Minerals Limited for the financial year ended
30 June 2014, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct.
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FINANCIAL REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2014

3 CONSOLIDATED

‘ Note 2014 2013

| $ $
Revenue from Continuing Operations 5 805,219 861,002
Other Income 15 71,317 8,828
Expenses
Depreciationexpense . & (15662  (38559)
Salary&employmentcosts | 6 (448042  (565043)
Operatingexpenses (522370)  (569372)
Professnonalfees 77777777 (77,675) (127.999)
Administrationexpenses 146 (243)
Legalfees (61462) (21.45)
Impairmentofexplorationasset (3365772)  (904565)
Totalexpenses (4510,837)  (2,227,232)
Loss before tax (3,634,301) (1,357,402)
Incometaxbeneft .7  (6810) 176384
Loss for the year (3,641,111) (1,181,018)
Othercomprehensiveincome : -
ltems thotmaybe reclassified toprofitorloss - -
temsthat willnotbereclossifiedtoprofitorloss : -
Totalcomprehensive Loss for theyear E64M)  (1181018)
Atributsbleto:
Membersof PepinNini Mineral Limited i Be4am)  (118101)
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 (3,641,111) (1,181,018)
Earnings per share for loss attributable to the
ordinary equity holders of the company:
Basicloss (centspershare 25 (29) (10)
Dilutedloss (centspershare) i 25 29) (10)

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS
AT 30 JUNE 2014

! CONSOLIDATED

Note 2014 2013

: $ $
Currentassets
Cashandcashequivalents 8 674372 945493
Tradeandotherrecetvables . 9 336920 526678
Otherassets 54,309 55273
Total current assets 1,065,610 1,527,444
Non-current assets
Explorationexpenditure . 10 19626854 21442398
Explorationbonds 0 35750 35750
Propertyplantandequipment . 1 19804 263217
DeferredtaxAssets 5 : -
Total non-current assets 19,854,408 21,741,365
Total assets 20,920,018 23,268,809
Current liabilities
Tradeandotherpayables 13 208741 264437
Prov1snons]4 220,598 183,582
Total current liabilities 519,339 448,019
Non-current liabilities
Provisions . iu 6671 6,442
Borrowings,relatedparty 13 200000 -
Total non-current liabilities 206,671 6,442
Total liabilities 726,010 454,461
Net assets 3 20,194,008 22,814,348
Equity
Issuedcapntal]G 20,907,431 19,931,989
Reserves]7 438,097 392,768
Retainedearnings 7 (15152) 248950
Total Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company ! 20,194,008 22,814,348

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2014

‘ Equity _Total

Consolidated FoL:‘Lc:?npaEr";j F;J;E[)gop:sid ersnepf Icl)‘;ie eRs:iii:chj atttc: I:; Ltj?tl;le

shares benefits holders of

reserve the Company
5 | 5 | 3 5 | 3
Balance at 1July 2012 ' 19,214,080 ! - 362,035 3,670,609 ' 23,246,724
(loss) for year - - - (1181,018) | (1181,018) :
Othercomprehensiveincome L - oo h -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income - - - (1181,018) :  (1,181,018)
Issue of shares, net of transactions costs and tax ! ! !
(note16) 717909 ! - - -1 717909 !
Employee share options - - 30,733 - 30,733
Balance at 30 June 2013 ' 19,931,989 - 392,768 | 2,489,591 ' 22,814,348
Balance at 1July 2013 ' 19,931,989 - 392,768 | 2,489,591 | 22,814,348 !
Loss for the year - - - (3.6411M) 1 (3,641110) !
Othercomprehensiveincome L - Lol h -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income - - -0 (3,641111) ¢ (3,641111) ¢
Issue of shares, net of transaction costs and tax ! ;
(note16) 426,707 - - -1 426707 ¢
lssweofOptons . .. 548735, .. - 548735
Employeeshareoptions . -1 - 45329, - 45329
Balance at 30 June 2014 120,358,696 | 548735 | 438,097 ' (1151,520) : 20,194,008 :

The above consolidated statements of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

! CONSOLIDATED
| Note 2014 2013

$ $
Cash flows from operating activities
Paymentstosuppliersandemployees(inclusiveof GST) (120199)  (1633,354)
Receiptsinthe course of business (inclusive of ST 1 1090629 993,248
Interestandother costs of financepaid L : :
Incometaxesrefunded (paid) L 75,000 18,086
Net cash (used in) operating activities 24 (36,362) (622,020)
Cash flows frominvesting activities
Iterestreceived o 19770 55,874
Paymentforexplorationactivities (1540702)  (1734677)
Paymentsforproperty, plantandequipment : :
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant andequipment 117,541 26,628
Proceeds fromsaleof assetsheldforsale L - 850000
Net cash (used in) investing activities (1,403,391) (802,175)
Cash flows from financing activities |
Proceeds fromissues of equitysecurities L 968632 676,207
Proceeds from directors loan 200,000 -
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,168,632 676,207
Netdecreaseincashand cashequivalents (271021)  (747,988)
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the financialyear | 945,493 1,693,482
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year r 8 674,372 945,493

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2014

NOTE 1T GENERAL INFORMATION

This financial report covers the consolidated financial
statements for the consolidated entity consisting of PepinNini
Minerals Limited (the “Company” or “Parent”) and its
controlled entities (the “Group” or the “consolidated entity").

The company's registered office and its principal place of
business are as follows:

Principal and Registered office:

96 Babbage Road,

Roseville Chase NSW 2069
Phone: +61(0)29417 6212

Fax: +61(0)2 9417 3043

Email: admin@pepinnini.com.au
Website: www.pepinnini.com.au

Exploration office WA:

56 Kathleen Street,

Trigg WA 6029

Phone: +61(0)8 9246 4829
Fax:+61(0)8 9246 4829

Exploration office SA:

22aand 22b Charlotte Street,
Smithfield SA 5114

Phone: +61(0)8 8254 2044
Fax:+61(0)88254 2033

Operations office:

Levell, 76 Waymouth Street,
Adelaide SA 5000

Phone: +61(0)88218 5000
Fax:+61(0)882185717

Email : admin@pnn-adelaide.com.au

PepinNini Minerals Limited was incorporated in Australia and
is domiciled in Australia.

Adescription of the nature of the consolidated entity’s
operations and its principal activities is included in the review
of operations and activities in the directors'report, whichis
not part of this financial report.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors
on18 September 2014. The Group has the power to amend and
reissue the financial report.

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our
corporatereporting is timely and complete. All press releases,
financialreports and other information are available at our
Shareholders’ Centre on our website: www.pepinnini.com.au

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the financial report are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The general purpose financial report has been preparedin
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board and the Corporations Act 2001. PepinNini Minerals
Limitedis a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing

the financial statements.

Compliance with IFRS

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting
Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

New and amended standards adopted by the group

None of the new standards and amendments to standards that
are mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning1July 2013 affected any of the amounts recognised
inthe current period or any prior period and are not likely to
affect future periods.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It alsorequires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where estimates and judgements are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed innote 3.

Reclassification

When the presentation or classification of items in the
financialreport is amended, comparative amounts are
reclassified to ensure comparability.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is
PepinNini Minerals Limited's functional currency.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



Adoption of new and revised Accounting
Standards

Inthe current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and
revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (the AASB) that are relevant to
its operations and effective for the current annual reporting
period. Details of the impact of the adoption of these new
accounting standards are set out below. The adoption of these
standards did not have any impact on the current period or

any prior period and is not likely to affect future periods.

* AASBT1 Joint arrangements - the standard has been
considered and no change in treatment is required.

* AASB12Disclosure of interests in other entities - the
current treatment by PepinNini covers the requirements
of this standard

* AASBI13Fair value measurement - the standard has
been considered when accessing fair value and no
change isrequired

= AASB 2011-14 Amendment to Australian accounting
standards to remove individual KMP disclosure
requirements - the standard has resulted in KMP
disclosures being removed from the notes to the
financials and included within the remuneration report.

Principles of consolidation
i) Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets
and liabilities of all subsidiaries of the Company and the results
of all subsidiaries as at 30 June 2014 and the results for all
subsidiaries for the year then ended.

Subsidiaries are all those entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has control. Controlis achieved
whenthe group is exposed, or has rights to variable returns
fromits involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect thosereturns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the group controls aninvestee if and only if the
group has:

+ Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give
it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
theinvestee)

= Exposure, orrights, to variable returns fromits
involvement with the investee, and

* Theability touseits power over the investee to affect
itsreturns

When the group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of aninvestee, the group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

* Thecontractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee

» Rightsarising from other contractual arrangements
» The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
controlis transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions and balances between Group
companies are eliminated in full. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of financial positionrespectively.

ii] Joint arrangement

The proportionate interests in the assets, liabilities and
expenses of ajoint arrangement activity have been
incorporated in the financial statements under the appropriate
headings. Details of the joint arrangements are set out in note
23.Interests injoint operations in which the Groupis a
venturer and has joint control are included in the financial
statements by recognising the Group's share of jointly
controlled assets (classified according to their nature), the
share of liabilities incurred (including those incurred jointly
with the other venturers) and the Group's share of expenses
incurred by or inrespect of each joint arrangement. Further
details of the joint operations are set out in note 23.

iii) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the votingrights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost. The Group's investment in associates (net
of any accumulated impairment loss) includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses isrecognised in the statement of comprehensive
income, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
reservesisrecognised in other comprehensive income.

The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment.
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iii) Associates (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest
inthe associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of animpairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted
in the preparation and presentation of the financial report:

a) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net
of trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf
of third parties.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
canbereliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity, and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group's activities as described below.
The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably
measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale or

the provision of services have beenresolved.

Service income

Sales of drilling services are recognised in the accounting
period inwhich the services are rendered.

Interest income

Interestincome is recognised using the effective
interest method.

Dividend income

Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive
the payment is established.

b) Government grants

Government grants are assistance by the government in the
form of transfers of resources to the Group inreturn for past
or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the
operating activities of the entity. Government grants include
government assistance where there are no conditions
specifically relating to the operating activities of the Group
other than the requirement to operate in certain regions or
industry sectors.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where thereis reasonable assurance that the grant will be

received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Grants for exploration drilling activity within an exploration
tenement which has not yet reached a stage which permits
reasonable assessment of the existence of economically
recoverablereserves, hasbeenrecognised as deferred income
and is offset against costs capitalised and will be recognised in
profitand loss over the expected useful life of the exploration
tenement asset concerned.

c) Income tax

The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax
payable onthe current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for eachjurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The currentincome tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end

of the reporting period in the countries where the company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
intaxreturns withrespect to situations in which applicable
taxregulationis subject tointerpretation. It establishes the
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferredincome tax s provided in full, using the liability
method, ontemporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in

the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of anasset or liability inatransaction other thana
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
taxis determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are
expectedto apply when therelated deferred income tax asset
isrealised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferredtax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferredtax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount of tax
bases of investments in controlled entities where the parent
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences anditis probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when thereis a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset when the entity has alegally enforceable right to offset
andintends either to settle ona net basis, or torealise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
tothe extent thatitrelates to itemsrecognised in other
comprehensive income or equity. In this case, the taxis also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Tax consolidation legislation

PepinNini Minerals Limited and its wholly-owned Australian
controlled entities have implemented the tax consolidation
legislation. As a consequence, these entities are taxed as a
single entity and the deferred tax assets and liabilities of these
entities are set off in the consolidated financial statements.

The head entity, PepinNini Minerals Limited, and the controlled
entities in the tax consolidated group account for their own
currentand deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are
measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group
continues to be astand alone taxpayer inits ownright.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts,
PepinNini Minerals Limited also recognises the current tax
liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from
controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with
the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts
receivable from or payable to other entities in the Group. Details
about the tax funding agreement are disclosed innote 7 (e).

Any difference between the amounts assumed and amounts
receivable or payable under the tax funding agreement are
recognised as a contribution to (or distribution from)
wholly-owned tax consolidated entities.

d) Impairment of assets

Goodwilland intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carryingamount may not be
recoverable. Animpairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs to sell and value inuse. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered animpairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each

reporting date.

e) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation on the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to aninsignificant risk
of changesinvalue, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

f) Trade receivables

Tradereceivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade
receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off
by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance account
isused when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect allamounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of
the impairment allowance is the difference between the asset'’s
carryingamount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Cash flows relating to short termreceivables are not
discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income within other expenses.
When a trade receivable for which animpairment allowance
had beenrecognised becomes uncollectible inasubsequent
period, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against other expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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g) Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditures inrelation to each
separate area of interest are recognised as an exploration and
evaluation asset in the year in which they are incurred where
the following conditions are satisfied:

i) therights of tenure of the area of interest are current; and
ii) atleastone of the following conditions is also met:

a) the exploration and evaluation expenditures are
expectedto be recouped through successful
development and commercial exploitation of the
area of interest, or alternatively, by its sale; or

=

exploration and evaluation activities in the area
of interest have not, at the reporting date,
reached a stage which permits anassessment

of the existence or otherwise of economically
recoverablereserves, and active and significant
operations in, or inrelation to, the area of interest
are continuing

Exploration and evaluation assets are initially measured at
costandinclude acquisition of rights to explore, studies,
exploratory drilling, trenching and sampling and associated
activities and an allocation of depreciation and amortisation
of assets usedin exploration and evaluation activities. General
and administrative costs are only included in the measurement
of exploration and evaluation costs whether they are directly
related to operational activities inaparticular area of interest.

Aregularreview is undertaken of each area of interest to
determine whether any impairment indicators exist and
therefore the appropriateness of continuing to carry forward
costsinrelation to thatarea of interest. Accumulated costs in
relationto an abandoned area are written off in full against
profit/(loss) in the year in which the decision to abandon

the areais made.

When production commences, the accumulated costs for
therelevant area of interest are amortised over the life of the
areaaccording to the rate of depletion of the economically
recoverablereserves.

h) Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
orrecognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income during the reporting
period inwhich they are incurred.

Depreciationon assets is calculated using the diminishing value
method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

* Plant &equipment-4to3yearsor25%to33%
* Fieldvehicles-3yearsor33%

Depreciation for assets used in exploration activities are
capitalisedrather thanbeing expensed. Assets'residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

Anasset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater
thanits estimated recoverable amount (note 2(d)). Additionally,
if anasset's written down value reduces below $500, it is
written off through the statement of comprehensive income.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
statement of comprehensive income.

i) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually
paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables
are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months from the reporting date. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



j) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as aresult of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligationand the amount has beenreliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If the effect is material, provisions are measured at the
present value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the
presentvalue reflects the current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

i) Siterestoration

Provision for site restoration is recognised when the
land is disturbed. The provisionis the best estimate of
the present value of the expenditure required to settle
therestoration obligation at balance date.

Site restoration costs include the dismantling and
removal of mining plant, equipment and building
structures, waste removal, and rehabilitation of the
site inaccordance with clauses of the mining permits.

Restoration costs are allocated to expense over the life
of therelated assets and are periodically adjusted to
reflect changes in the estimated present value resulting
from the passage of time and revisions to the estimate
of either the timing or amount of the reclamation and
abandonment costs. The site restoration obligationis
based onwhen the spending for an existing
environmental disturbance and activity will occur. The
company reviews, onan annual basis, unless otherwise
deemed necessary, the site restoration obligation at
eachsite. Future reclamation costs for inactive mines
areaccrued based onmanagement's best estimate at
the end of each period of the costs expected to be
incurred at asite. Such cost estimates include, where
applicable, ongoing care, maintenance and monitoring
costs. Changes in estimates at inactive mines are

reflectedin earnings in the period an estimate is revised.

k) Employee benefits

i) Wages and salaries, annual leave, long service and
sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits, annual leave, and accumulating
sick leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the
reporting date are recognised when it is probable that
settlement will be required and they are capable of being
measured reliably. Amountsrecognised are inrespect of
employees'services up to the reporting date and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled.

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the
provision for employee benefits and measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made
inrespect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Consideration is given to expected
future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the
reporting date on national government bonds with
terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely
as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

i) Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution superannuation
plansinrespect of administrative employees are
expensed as they become payable. Prepaid contributions
arerecognised as anasset to the extent thatacash
refund or reduction in the future payments is available.
Where an employee is involved in exploration activities,
the contributions form part of the exploration and
development expenditure capitalised for the period
during which they occurred.

l) Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options

are showninequity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options for the acquisition of abusiness are not included
in the cost of acquisition as part of the purchase consideration.

If the entity reacquires its own equity instruments, for example
asaresult of a share buy-back, those instruments are deducted
from equity and the associated shares are cancelled. No gain

or lossisrecognised in the profit or loss and the consideration
paidincluding any directly attributable incremental costs

(net of income taxes) is recognised directly in equity.
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m) Earnings per share
i) Basicearnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year.

i) Dilutedearnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures usedin
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares and the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

n) Share-based payments

Share-based compensationis provided to selected
employees, non-executive directors and is used to fund
certainbusiness transactions with third parties. The fair
value of share based compensation granted is recognised

as anexpense or asset as appropriate, with a corresponding
increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
andisrecognised over the period during which the employees
or third party become unconditionally entitled to the

stock compensation.

The fair value at grant date is determined using market prices
for shares and using a Black-Scholes option pricing model for
options. The option pricing model that takes into account the
exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution,
the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of
the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk
freeinterestrate for the term of the option. The fair value of
the options granted is adjusted to reflect market vesting
conditions, but excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected
tobecome exercisable. At eachreporting date, the entity
revises its estimate of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. The employee benefit
expense recognised each period takes into account the

most recent estimate. The impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit and loss with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

o) Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable fromthe taxation authority. In this case it is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of
GSTreceivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included within
otherreceivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented onagross basis. The GST
components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities which arerecoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

p) Foreign currency translation
i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency'). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Australian dollars,
whichis PepinNiniMinerals Limited's functional and
presentation currency.

ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated inforeign currencies are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income, except when they
are deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable
topart of the netinvestmentinaforeign operation.

Translation differences on financial assets and liabilities
carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gainor loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences onnon-monetary financial assets such as
equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets
areincluded in the fair value reserve in equity.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



iii) Group companies

Theresults and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

* assetsand liabilities for each balance sheet
presentedare translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

* income and expenses for each profit and loss item
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
thisisnotareasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

* allresulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

q) Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group, as
lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
atthe lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
areincluded in other short-term and long-term payables. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income over the lease period so as to produce
aconstant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset’s
useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term if there is noreasonable certainty that the Group
will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Leases inwhich a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are not transferred to the Group as lessee are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases are charged to the statement of comprehensive income
onastraight-line basis over the period of the lease.

r) Parent entity information

The financial information for the parent entity, PepinNini
Minerals Limited, disclosed innote 28 has been prepared
on the same basis as the consolidated financial statements,
exceptassetoutbelow.

i) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint venture entities

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture
entities are accounted for at cost in the financial
statements of PepinNini Minerals Limited. Dividends
received from associates are recognised in the parent
entity's profit or loss, rather than being deducted from
the carryingamount of these investments.

Tax consolidation legislation

PepinNini Minerals Limited and its wholly-owned
Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax
consolidation legislation. The head entity, PepinNini
Minerals Limited, and the controlled entities in the tax
consolidated group account for their own current and
deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are measured
as if each entity in the tax consolidated group continues
tobe astandalone taxpayerinits ownright.

Inaddition toits own current and deferred tax amounts,
PepinNini Minerals Limited also recognises the current tax
liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising
fromunused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed
from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.

The entities have also entered into a tax funding
agreement under which the wholly-owned entities fully
compensate PepinNini Minerals Limited for any current
tax payable assumed and are compensated by PepinNini
Minerals Limited for any current tax receivable and
deferredtax assetsrelating to unusedtax losses or
unused tax credits that are transferred to PepinNini
Minerals Limited under the tax consolidation legislation.
The funding amounts are determined by reference to the
amounts recognised in the wholly-owned entities’
financial statements.

The amounts receivable/payable under the tax funding
agreement are due uponreceipt of the funding advice from
the head entity, whichis issued as soon as practicable after
the end of each financial year. The head entity may also
require payment of interim funding amounts to assist with
its obligations to pay tax instalments.

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding
agreements with the tax consolidated entities are
recognised as current amounts receivable fromor
payable to other entities in the group. Any difference
betweenthe amounts assumed and amounts receivable
or payable under the tax funding agreement are
recognised as a contribution to (or distribution from)
wholly-owned tax consolidated entities.
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s] New accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2014
reporting periods. The Group's and parent entity’s assessment
of the impact of these new standards and interpretations is
setoutbelow.

AASB9/IFRS 9Financial Instruments
(effective from 1 January 2018)

IFRS 9replaces IAS 39 and includes a logical model for
classification and instruments measurement, a single forward
looking "expected loss"impairment model and a substantially-
reformed approach to hedge accounting.

The new standard requires entities to account for expected
credit losses from when the financial instruments are first
recognised and to recognise full lifetime losses onamore
timely basis.

AASB 9includes requirements for a simplified approach for
classification and measurement of financial assets compared
with the requirements of AASB139.

There willbe noimpact on the group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss and the group does not have any such liabilities.

The group will not be impacted by the rules around hedge
accounting as the group does not have any hedging
arrangements.

The group has not yet decided when to adopt AASB 9 /IFRS 9.
Inorder to apply the new hedgingrules, the group would have
toadopt AASB 9 and the consequential amendments to AASB
7 and AASB139in their entirety.

AASB Interpretation 21 Accounting for Levies
(effective from 1 January 2014)

Interpretation 21 was issued by the AASB in June 2013. It is
relevant to all taxes paid to governments excluding income
taxes. It sets out the accounting for an obligationto pay a levy
imposed by agovernment inaccordance with legislation.

The interpretation clarifies that a liability must be recognised
when the obligating event occurs, being the event that triggers
the obligation to pay the levy. The Group has determined that
the accounting for these levies will not have a materialimpact
onthe Group. The Group will adopt the Interpretation from the
reporting period commencing1July 2014.

Revenue from contracts with customers
(effective 1January 2017)

The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition
of revenue. This willreplace IAS 18 which covers
contracts for goods and services and |AS 11 which covers
construction contracts.

The new standard is based on a principle that revenue s
recognised when control of agood or service transferstoa
customer - so the notion of controlreplaces the existing
notion of risks and rewards. While the AASB has not yet issued
an equivalent standard, they are expected to do soin the
second half of 2014.

The Group has not yet considered the impact of the new rules
onitsrevenue recognition policies. It willundertake a detailed
assessment in the near future. Expected date of adoption by
the Groupis1July 2017.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective that are expected to
have a materialimpact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and unforeseeable future transactions.

NOTE 3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and

are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financialimpact
onthe entity and that are believed to be reasonable under

the circumstances.

The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future, the results of which, by definition, seldom equal the
related actualresults. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

i) Reservesandresources

Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure
incurredis accumulated inrespect of each identifiable
areaof interest. These costs are only carried forward to
the extent that they are expectedto be recouped
through the successful development of the area or
where activities inthe area have not yet reached a stage
which permits reasonable assessment of the existence
of economically recoverable reserves. Aregular review
isundertaken of each area of interest to determine
whether any impairment indicators exist and therefore
the appropriateness of continuing to carry forward
costsinrelation to that area of interest.

ii) Impairment

Assets held are subject to impairment in line with the
accounting policy detailed in note 2(d). Determination
of impairment requires significant judgement and
estimation. In exercising this judgement the group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
towhich fair value is less than carrying value.
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NOTE 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Group. The Group uses different methods to measure different
types of risk towhichitis exposed.

These methods include sensitivity analysis of interest rate,
foreign exchange and other price risks.

Risk management is carried out by the board of directors who
provide principles for overall risk management.

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables

674,372 945,493
336,929 526,678

1,011,301 1,472,171

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

(298741)  (264,437)

Borrowings, related party

(200,000) -

(498,741)  (264,437)

a) Market risk
i) Commodity Price risk

Financial assets and liabilities held by the group are not
subject to commodity price exposure for either the 30
June 2014 and 30 June 2013 financial years.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013, all of the Group's
borrowings were non-interest bearing. The following
table details the Group's and the Company's exposure to
interestrate risk on each class of financial instrument as

at 30 June 2014:

CONSOLIDATED

30 JUNE 2014 30 JUNE 2013

Weighted Weighted
_ average Balance ~ average Balance
interest rate interest rate
% $ % $
Cash 161 115,000 27 18130
Atcalldeposits 186 134116 295 152,812
Termdeposnts 7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 337 425,256 413 774,551
Tradeandotherreceivables NA 336929 N/A 526678
Total financial assets 1,011,301 1,472,171
Tradeandotherpayables N/A  (29874) NA  (264437)
Total financial liabilities (298,741) (264,437)
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a) Market risk (continued)

Ananalysis by maturities is providedin (c) below.

Sensitivity analysis - interest rates

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic

basis only for all financial assets and liabilities.

Group sensitivity

The following table summarises the sensitivity of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk.

INTEREST RATE RISK
CONSOLIDATED +1.0% -1.0%
S D 2 amount | profit | Equy | Proft | Equity
$ | $ | $ | $ | $ |
Financalassets o
Atcalldeposts B4n6 . 99 - (@9 -
Termdeposits . 428286 -1 i bl
Tradeandotherreceivables . 336929 - -1 -l .
Financial liabilities
Tradeandotherpayables | o874y | - i i
Total increase/ (decrease) ! 1744 - (1,744) -
INTEREST RATE RISK
CONSOLIDATED +1.0% -1.0%
A0 e 25 amount | Proft. | Equty | Proft. | Equty
$ | $ | $ | $ | $ |

Financialassets i iy
Csh 18130 . 27 - w2 -
Atcalldeposits . 128120 10700 - ao70) i -
Termdeposts 7745510 - - Lh
Tradeandotherreceivables | 526678 | -1 i i .
Financial liabilities ! !
Tradepayablesandotherpayables (264,437) | N :
Total increase/ (decrease) ‘ 1197 ¢ (1197)
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a) Market risk (continued)
iii) Foreign exchange risk

The group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from the United States
Dollar and Argentine Peso.

Foreign exchangerisk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
denominated inacurrency thatis not the entity's
functional currency. Therisk is measured using
sensitivity analysis and cash flow forecasting.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the Group had immaterial
exposure to foreign currency. As aresult financial assets
and financial liabilities outstanding as at balance date
are not sensitive to changes in exchange rates.

(b) Credit risk

Creditrisk is managed ona group basis. Credit risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial

instruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions,

aswell as credit exposure on trade receivables. For banks and
financial institutions, only parties rated by the three rating
agencies with aminimum rating of ‘A"are accepted. Individual
risk limits for customers are set based on internal or external
ratings in accordance with limits set by the board.

The compliance with credit limits by customers is regularly
monitored by management.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying amount of the financial assets as summarised
inthe table below:

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013

Cashand cash equivalents

Minimum rating of “A” 674,372 945,493

674,372 945,493

Tradereceivables

Counterparties without
external credit rating 336,894 526,678

Total trade receivables 336,894 526,678

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability

of funding through an adequate amount of committed

credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Maturities of financial assets

The tables below analyse the Group's financial assets into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at thereporting date to the maturity date. The amounts
disclosedinthe table are undiscounted cash flows.

B Total Carrying
Group - At 30 June | Lessthan 6 6 - 12 months Between 1 Between 2 e P [ Amount
2014 months and 2 years | and 5years
cash flows (asset)
| | $ ! $ ! $ ! $ ! $ ! $ !
Trade and other
receivables 11,929 ! 325,000 ! - - - 336,929 ! 336,929 !
Total 3 1,929 | 325,000 - - -1 336929 ! 336929 !
Group - At 30 June | Lessthan 6 Between 1 Between 2 fotal Carrying
P 6 - 12 months Over 5years | contractual Amount
2013 months and 2 years | and 5years
cash flows (asset)
| | $ ! $ ! $ ! $ ! $ ! $ !
Trade and other
receivables 126,678 400,000 - - - 526,678 526,678
Total . 126,678 | 400,000 ! - - -1 526678 | 526,678
Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Group's financial liabilities,
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
Group - At 30 June | Lessthan 6 Between 1 Between 2 Ugel el
6 - 12 months Over 5years | contractual Amount
2014 months and 2 years | and 5years o
cash flows (Liability)
| | $ ! $ ! $ ! $ ! $ ! $ !
Trade and other
payables (298,741) - - - - (298,741) (298,741)
Total © (298,741) - - - - (298741) ©  (298,741)
Group - At 30 June | Lessthan 6 Between 1 Between 2 Ugel el
6 - 12 months Over 5years | contractual Amount
2013 months and 2 years | and 5years L
cash flows (Liability)
| | $ ! $ ! $ ! $ ! $ ! $ !
Trade and other
payables © o (264,437) - - - -1 (264437) 1 (264,437)
Total ' (264,437) ¢ - - - - (264,437) | (264,437)
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d) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must
be estimated for recognition and measurement and for
disclosure purposes.

NOTE 6 EXPENSES

CONSOLIDATED
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2014 2013
The carrying value of trade receivables, less the impairment
provision, and trade payables are assumed to approximate $ $
their fair values due to their short term nature. The fair value Loss before income tax
of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by includes the following
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current specific expenses:
market interestrate thatis available to the Group for similar
financialinstruments. The directors consider that the carrying =~ ---- oo oo e
amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised Deprectatlon(a) 77777777777777
costin the financial statements approximates their fair values. Exploration field equipment 1,380 2954
Drilling equipment - 1725
NOTE 5 REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME Office computer equipment 10,365 15,952
The Group's revenue for the year is as follows: Fle}d‘/ehld?s 7777777777777777 1424 12628
Office equipment 2,493 5300
CONSOLIDATED Total depreciation expensed 15,662 38,559
2014 2013 Depreciation capitalised (a) 59,442 79,222
$ $ Total depreciation 75,104 17,781
Interestrevenue:
Bank deposits 18,617 56,398 Salary & Employment costs
18,617 56,398 Salaries & wages 372,495 500,923
Employee options expense 45,329 30,734
Otherrevenue: Defined contribution
Drilling services revenue 254,552 180,234 superannuation expense =2l SR
Other revenue 532050 624,370 448042 565043
786,602 804,604
Operating lease
805,219 861,002 Rental expense relating
tooperating lease 109,378 147,208
Otherincome: (a) During the year, depreciation expense was capitalised as part of
”””””””””””””””””””” exploration expenditure.
Gainonsale of assets 71317 8,828
71,317 8,828
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NOTE 7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

CONSOLIDATED
2014 2013
$ $
(a) Income tax expense / (benefit)
Currenttax(benefit) /expense : .
Deferredtax (benefit)/expense 6,810 41702
Adjustmentof taxof priorperiods - (218,086)

6810  (176,384)

Loss from continuing operations = (176,384)

Aggregate income tax expense / (benefit) - (176,384)

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets (note15) 6,810 41,702
(Decrease)increase indeferred tax liabilities (note 15) - -
6,810 41,702

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable

Loss from continuing operations before income tax expense (3,634,301) (1,357,402)
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2013 30%) (1,090,290) (407.221)
Taxeffect of amounts whichare not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Employeestockcompensation 13,598 :
Adjustmentofpriorperiodtax : :
AdjustmenttopriorperiodR&D (97500) (218086
R&DNon-deductible expenditure 216667 146667
Other : 9,220
Deferredtaxassetsnotrecognisedasnotprobable 964335 293036
Income tax (benefit) / expense 6,810 (176,384)

(c) Amounts recognised directly in equity

Net deferred tax - credited directly to equity (note 16) 6,810 41,702
6,810 41,702

(d) Tax losses

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has beenrecognised 7,094,101 3,187,226
Unused capital losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 5,840,532 5,840,532
Potential tax benefit @ 30% 3,880,390 2,708,327
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e) Tax consolidation legislation

PepinNini Minerals Limited and its wholly owned Australian
controlled entities implemented the tax consolidation
legislation from1September 2006. The accounting policy
inrelation to this legislation is set out in note 2(c).

On adoption of the tax consolidation legislation, the entities

in the tax consolidated group entered into a tax sharing
agreement which, in the opinion of the directors, limits the joint
and several liability of the wholly owned entities in the case of
adefault by the head entity, PepinNini Minerals Limited.

The entities have also entered into a tax funding agreement
under which the wholly owned entities fully compensate
PepinNiniMinerals Limited for any current tax payable
assumed and are compensated by PepinNini Minerals Limited
forany current taxreceivable and deferred tax assets relating
tounused tax losses or unused tax credits that are transferred
to PepinNini Minerals Limited under the tax consolidation
legislation. The funding amounts are determined by reference
tothe amounts recognised in the wholly owned entities’
financial statements.

The amounts receivable/payable under the tax funding
agreement are due uponreceipt of the funding advice from
the head entity, whichis issued as soon as practicable after
the end of each financial year. The head entity may also require
payment of interim funding amounts to assist with its
obligations to pay tax instalments. The funding amounts are
recognised as current intercompany receivables or payables.

NOTE 8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CONSOLIDATED

2014 ‘ 2013
$ $
Cashand cashequivalents | 668194 934,751
Cashonhand 6178 10742

674,372 945,493

The Group's exposure to interest raterisk is disclosed innote 4.

Includedin cash and cash equivalents is $121,721(2013: $42,615)
of cash held by the PepinNini Sinosteel Curnamonajoint
venture whichis only available for expenditure on the joint
venture project.

NOTE 9 TRADE AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013

$ $
Current
Tradereceivables 11,929 126,678
Research &
Development tax refund 325,000 400,000
Allowance for doubtful
debts - -

336,929 526,678

Goods and services tax
recoverable - -

Trade and other
receivables 336,929 526,678
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NOTE 9 TRADE AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued]

a) Impaired trade receivables

There areno otherreceivables impaired at
30 June 2014 (2013:nil).

2014 2013

Receivables written off
during the year = -

At 30 June - -

b) Past due but not impaired

As at 30 June 2014, no trade receivables were past due but not
impaired (2013: nil). The other classes of receivables do not
containimpaired assets and are not past due. Based on the
credit history of these other classes, it is expected that these
amounts will be received when due. The Group does not hold
any collateralinrelation to these receivables.

c] Foreign exchange and interest rate risk

Information about the Group's and the parent entity's
exposure to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk in
relation to trade and other receivables is provided in note 4.

d) Fair value and credit risk

Due to the short term nature of these receivables, their
carrying amount is assumed to approximate their fair value.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying amount of each class of receivables mentioned
above.Refer tonote 4 for more information on the risk
management policy of the Group and the credit quality of
the entity's trade receivables.

NOTE 10 EXPLORATION EXPENDITURE
AND EXPLORATION BONDS

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013

Exploration expenditure

Balance at the beginning

of theyear 21,442,398 21,422,530
Exploration expenditure

capitalised 1,550,228 1,774,433
Disposed tenements - (850,000)

Impairment of

explorationassets (a) (3,365,772) (904,565)

Balance at the end

of the year 19,626,854 21,442,398

Environmental bonds

Balance at the beginning
of the year 35,750 33,250

Amounts capitalised = 2,500

Bonds released
during year = s

Balance at the end
of the year 35,750 35,750

a) Impairment of exploration assets

The impairment loss relates to anintention to sell all of
PepinNini's interest in PepinNini Resources Curnamona Pty Ltd.

The assetsrelating to capitalised exploration expenditure for
the tenements held for sale are not considered to be assets
held for sale as defined under AASB 5 at balance date, as the
probability of the sale was unknown at balance date.

Animpairment expense has beenrecognised at 30 June 2014
inrelationto the exploration asset to carry the asset at fair
value. The impairment expense recognised is $3,365,772,
being the difference between the carrying value of the asset at
30 June 2014 and the fair value, as determined by a conditional
sale contract dated 14t July 2014.
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NOTE 11 PROPERTY, PLANT

AND EQUIPMENT

CONSOLIDATED
E(?uriiélri:gnt AR eqljii;rfent quUTmeULen"t quif:r:sent fotal
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Sio S s s s s
Year ended 30 June 2013
Openingnetbookamount | 153251 89461 5266 | ! 50257 | 16947 | 361182 |
additons a0 -2 2909 - 25272
Disposals . @wa L 525 0 e3) G324 (5.456)
Depreciationcharge | (52995) | (27653) |  (5875) . (5952 |  (5306) |  (1778])
Net book amount 120972 ! 62,951 34,866 36,111 8317 263,217
At 30 June 2013
Cost | 826995 412393 2439177 . 127905 | - 45234 | 1656444 |
Accumulateddepreciation | (706023) | (349442) | (20905) | (91794) |  (36917) | (1393,227) |
Net book amount 120,972 62,951 34,866 36111 8317 ! 263,217
Year ended 30 June 2014
Openingnetbookamount | 1209721 62951 34866 | em 8317 | 263217 |
Additions L 2785 . -1 - i n 27856 |
Disposals L -l (22192  (469) .  (476) | -1  (24137)
Depreciationcharge | (40410) | (12166) | (9698) |  (10365) | (2493  (75132) |
Closing net book amount 108,418 28,593 | 23,699 25,270 | 5824 191,804
At 30June 2014
Cost | 854850 286004 . 228313 121608 | - 45234 | 1536099 |
Accumulateddepreciation | (746432) | (257501) | (204614) |  (96338) |  (39410) | (1344,295) |
Net book amount 108,418 28,593 | 23,699 | 25,270 | 5824 191,804
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NOTE 12 INVESTMENTS
IN SUBSIDIARIES

OWNERSHIP

INTEREST

N o smestery || e e | s

incorporation

s %l %
NiCul Minerals Pty Ltd" ' Australia © 100 @ 100
PepinNiniResources
Curnamona Pty Ltd* " Australia © 100 ¢ 100 !
PepinNini Robinson
Range Pty Ltd" " Australia © 100 100 !
PepinNini Minerals
International Pty Ltd* ' Australia © 100 100 !
PepinNiniQLD Pty Ltd* ' Australia © 100 ¢ 100
PepinNini Sociedad Argentine
Anonima * Republic © 100 ¢ 100 !

The proportion of ownership interest is equal to the
proportion of voting power held.

*These companies are members of the tax-consolidated
group. PepinNini Minerals Limited is the head entity within
the tax consolidated group.

"Name change 26 July 2011 from PepinNini Resources Pty Ltd

PepinNini Minerals Limited also has the following interests in
joint ventures (refer to note 23):

* 40%interestin Sinosteel PepinNini Curnamona
Management Pty Ltd, a company created so as to conduct
joint operations with Sinosteel Corporation.

= PepinNiniRobinson Range Iron Ore Joint Venture
agreement, an agreement created to conduct joint
operations with Grosvenor Gold Pty Limited and Jackson
Minerals. On commencement date PepinNiniRobinson
Range had a 50% interest in JV03 (3 tenements) and
40% interest in JV04 (4 tenements).

NOTE 13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013
77777777777777777777777777777 $ $
Tradepayables() 152743 193045
Sundry creditors and accruals 145,998 71392

298,741 264,437

i) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are usually
settled on 30 day terms.

a) Risk exposure

Information about the Group's and the parent entity's
exposure to foreign exchange risk is provided in note 4.

NOTE 14 PROVISIONS

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013

77777777777777777777777777777 $ $

Current-Employeebenefits 220598 183582

NonCurrent

-Employee benefits 6,671 6,442
227269 190,024

The current provision for employee benefits relates to
annual leave and long service leave entitlements accrued.
These amounts are expected to be settled within12 months
of balance date.

The non-current provision for employee benefitsrelates
tolong service leave entitlements accrued.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



NOTE 15 NON CURRENT
LIABILITIES - DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES / (ASSETS)

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013

$ $
The net deferred tax liability comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Deferredtaxassets:
Fundraisingcosts (46,618) (66126)
Provisionsandaccruals (68.181) (57007)
Unusedtaxlosses (7.965,624)  (7353,059)
Impairment of ivestment
Deferredtaxassetsnotrecognised | 2128230 964,507
Deferred tax assets: (5,952,192)  (6,511,685)
Deferredtax liabilities
Propertyplantandequipment 64136 78,966
Exploration expenditure, Resource exploration /potential, Mining information 5888056 6432719

5,952,192 6,511,685

Total net deferred tax liabilities = =
Movements Consolidated Total

At1July 2012

Charged/(credited) to the statement of comprehensive income -
Charged directly to equity ! -
At 30 June 2013 -
Charged/(credited) to the statement of comprehensive income -
Charged directly to equity ! -
At 30 June 2014 -
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NOTE 16 ISSUED AND
PAID UP CAPITAL

a) Share capital:

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013

143,731,600(2013:115,177,993)
fully paid ordinary shares 20,900,621 19,931,989

20,900,621 19,931,989

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends
and the proceeds on winding up of the company in proportion
to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. On
ashow of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at
ameetinginpersonor by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and
uponapolleachshare s entitled to one vote. Changes to the
then Corporations Law abolished the authorised capital and
par value concept inrelation to share capital from1July 1998.
Therefore, the company does not have a limited amount of
authorised capital and issued shares do not have a par value.

b) Movements in share capital:

2014 2013
No. $ No. $

Fully paid ordinary shares

Balanceatbeginningof financialyear 115177993 19931989 89702499 19,214,080
lssveofshares* 23294567 442508 25475494 815215
Shareissuecosts : (22701) - (139008)
Taxeffectonissuecosts : 6,810 - 41702
lssueofoptions - 324628 - :
Optionsissuecosts . (38845 - :
Optionsexercised 5250040 262952 - :
Subtotal

Transfer of amounts from equity-settled employee benefits expiring : : - :
Balance at end of financial year 143,731,600 20,907,431 115177993 19,931,989

#In June 2014 23.3 million PepinNini Minerals Limited ordinary

shares were issued as part of anon-renounceable entitlements

issue of shares offered to all shareholders at a price of 1.9
cents per share toraise $442,597 in capital.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED




In October 2013, 5.3 million PepinNini Minerals Limited options
were excercised at a price of 5 cents per option toraise
$262,952 in capital.

InJuly 2013 32.5 Million PepinNini Minerals Limited options
were issued as part of an entitlement issue at a price of Tcent
peroptiontoraise $324,628.

c) Share options granted under the executive
share option plan

During the 2014 and 2013 year, there were no options exercised
that were issued under the executive share option plan. As a
result of this there was no transfer from the equity-settled
employee benefits reserve to issued capital. During the year,
PepinNini Minerals Limited issued 7,500,000 share options
(2013:6,600,000) over ordinary shares under its executive
share option plan. For further details on share options issued
under the executive share option plan, refer tonote 19.

d) Capital risk management

The Group's and the parent entity's objectives when managing
capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern,
so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
toreduce debt. Consistent with others inthe industry and the
prior year, the Group monitor capital to ensure the company
has appropriate cash and cash equivalents available to meet
projected operational, investing and financing cash flow needs.

NOTE 17 RESERVES AND
RETAINED EARNINGS

(a) Reserves

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013

Equity-settled employee
benefits (i) 392,768 362,035

Equity-settled employee
benefits expensed during
theyear 45,329 30,733

438,097 392,768

i) The equity-settled employee benefits reserve is used
torecognise the fair value at grant date of share options
granted to executives and senior employees. The fair value is
then expensed over the vesting period of the share options.
Amounts are transferred out of the reserve and into issued
capital when the options are exercised.

b] Retained earnings

Movements inretained earnings were as follows:

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013
77777777777777777777777777777 $ $
Balance at beginning of
financial year 2,489,591 3,670,609
Net (loss)/ profit attributable
to members of the Company (3,641,1M) (1,181,018)
Dividends provided for
or paid (note18) - -

Balance at end of financial year ~ (1,151,520) 2,489,591
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NOTE 18 DIVIDENDS

COMPANY

2014 2013

No dividends have been paid for
theyear ended 30 June 2014
or 30 June 2013 = =

There has been no dividend recommended by the directors
since year end.

Franked dividends

COMPANY
2014 2013

77777777777777777777777777777 $ $
Franking credits available for
subsequent financial years
basedonataxrate of 30%
(2013:30%) 4,709,476 4,709,476

4,709,476 4,709,476

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking
account as at the end of the financial year, adjusted for:

a) franking credits that will arise from the payment of
the amount of the provision for income tax

b) franking debits that will arise from the payment of
dividends recognised as a liability at the reporting
date, and

c) franking credits that will arise from the receipt of
dividends recognised as receivables at the reporting date.

NOTE 19 KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

a) Directors

The following persons were directors of PepinNini Minerals
Limited during the financial year:

* RebeccaHolland-Kennedy - Managing director
* Robert(Wei) Sun - Director

= Phil Clifford - Director

* Murray Bailey (commenced1January 2014)

b) Other key management personnel

There are no employees directing and controlling the activities
of the Group, directly or indirectly, during the financial year
that would be considered key management personnel.

c] Key management personnel compensation

CONSOLIDATED

2014 201

$ $
Short-termemployee benefits 352,809 524,217
Postemploymentbenefits 37478 47050
Other Long-termbenefits - .
Terminationbenefits - 91765
Share-basedpayments | 45329 30733

435,616 693,765

Detailed remuneration disclosures are provided in the
remunerationreport on pages 37 to 46.

d) Other transactions with key
management personnel

The following table details the balances with related parties as
at30June 2014 and June 2013:

Amounts Amounts
owed by owed to
related related
parties parties

: $ $
Key
management
personnel of
the Group:
Directors’
interests
(Rebecca !
Holland- + 30 June 2014 = 200,000
Kennedy) + 30 June 2013 - -

Thereisnointerest charged on the related party loan noted
above. There have beenno sales and purchases between
related parties during the year ended 30 June 2014 and 2013.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



NOTE 20 REMUNERATION
OF AUDITORS

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013

77777777777777777777777777777 $ $
Auditor of the parent entity
Ernst & Youngaudit and
review of the financialreports 55,500 57500
Ernst & Young other
assurance services - =

55,500 57,500

NOTE 21 COMMITMENTS
FOR EXPENDITURE

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013

Capital expenditure
commitments

Granted exploration
tenement statutory
expenditure
commitments, payable:

Not longer than1year 1,696,275 1,204,600

Longerthan1year and not
longer than 5 years 799,67 2,481,000

Longer than5years = =

2,495,442 3,685,600

Operating lease
commitments:

Not longer than1year 160,000 167,000

Longer than1year and not
longer than 5 years = 160,000

Longer than5years = =

160,000 327,000

NOTE 22 RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

a) Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set outinnote 12.

b) Key management personnel

Disclosures relating to key management personnel are
setoutinnotel9.

c] Transactions with related parties

As at 30 June 2014, George Holland Pty Ltd, a company
of whichRebeccaHolland-Kennedy is a director
held 5,321,890 shares.

d) Terms and conditions

Transactions relating to dividends and subscriptions for new
ordinary shares were on the same terms and conditions that
applied to other shareholders.

The terms and conditions of the tax funding agreement are set
outinnote 7(e). All other transactions were made on normal
commercial terms and conditions and at market rates, except
that there are no fixed terms for the repayment of loans
betweenthe parties.

Outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash.
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NOTE 23 INTERESTS IN

JOINT OPERATIONS

The Group is aventurer in the following joint operations:

OUTPUT INTEREST

Name of venture Resident Principal activity 2014 2013

| | % | % |
Uranium Resources and Mineral ' Australia ! Management and operation of development of 40% 40%
Resources Joint venture (JVOI) © Crocker Well And Mt Victoria(SA) uranium deposits |

+ and exploration for other commodities :
Robinson Range Iron Ore Joint © Australia : Managementandoperationofdevelopmentoﬁronoref 50% 50%
Venture (JV03)* inthree tenements in the Robinson Range region(WA)
Jackson Iron Ore Joint © Australia Management and operation of development of iron ore ! 40% 40%

Venture (JV04)*

in four tenements in the Robinson Range region(WA)

During the year the Group was subject to cash calls
of $(1,381) (2013: $106,825) in accordance with the joint

operation agreements.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



Uranium Resource and Mineral Resources
Joint Venture

PepinNini Minerals Limited completed the sale of 60% of
certain tenements to Sinosteel Corporation in June 2007.

In conjunction with the sale, the Company has agreed to conduct
joint operations through Sinosteel PepinNini Curnamona

Management Pty Ltd, an operationin which it has a 40% interest.

During the year the Group was subject to cash calls
of $140,000 (2013: snil) in accordance with the joint
operationagreement.

Uranium Resource and
Mineral Resources Joint
Venture assets recognised in
the consolidated financial
statements

Year ended Year ended
30 Jun 2014 | 30 Jun 2013

Current assets

Trade and other receivables - -

Total current assets - -

Non-current assets

Otherreceivables - -

Exploration expenditure 4,848,251 4,848,251

Explorationbonds 10,255 10,255

Plantand equipment 191 218

Total non-current assets 4,858,697 4,858,724

Total assets 4,858,697 4,858,724

Current liabilities

Provisions - -

Total current liabilities - -

Total Liabilities = =

Net assets 4,858,697 4,858,724

Robinson Range Iron Ore Joint Ventures

During the year PepinNini was subject to cash calls of $(1,381) for
the Robinson Range Iron Ore (JV03) and Jackson Iron Ore (JV04)
joint ventures in accordance with the joint venture agreements.
Robinson Range Iron Ore (JV03) and Jackson Iron Ore (JV04) joint
venture net assets recognised in the consolidated financial
statements are summarised in the table following:

Robinson Range Iron
Ore(JV03) and Jackson Iron
Ore(JV04) joint venture Year ended | Year ended
assets recognised in the 30 Jun 2014 | 30Jun 2013
consolidated financial

statements

$ $
Currentassets
Cashandcash
equivalents 23,986 101,432
Tradeandother
receivables 115 283
Total current assets 24,101 101,715
Non-current assets
Explorationexpenditure 300254 300,254
Total non-current assets 300,254 300,254
Total assets 324,355 401,969
Current liabilities
Tradeandother
payables (967) (639)
Total current liabilities (967) (639)
Total Liabilities (967) (639)
Net assets 323,388 401,330
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NOTE 23 INTERESTS IN NOTE 24 RECONCILIATION OF LOSS
JOINT OPERATIONS (continued) AFTER INCOME TAX TO NET CASH
OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES AND NON-CASH ACTIVITIES

Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

There were no contingent liabilities arising from the Group’s
interests injoint ventures. The following capital expenditure
commitments relate to the Joint Ventures, which are included CONSOLIDATED

within the consolidated figures.

2014 2013

Year ended Yearended | oo 3 b

30 Jun 2014 | 30 Jun 2013 Loss for the year before tax (3,634,301) (1181,018)
77777777777777777777777777777 $ $
(a) Capital expenditure Non-cashitems
commitments ) Depreciation expensed 15,662 38,559
Grantedexploration oo
tenement statutory 9%‘{”}(‘@}?{’9%?' Oﬂ?'?E 77777777 (71.317) (8,828)
expenditure Impairment of
commitments, payable: exploration assets 3,365,772 904,565
Notlongerthan]year 777777777 133,358 229,600 Employee options expense 45,329 30,734
Longer thanTyear and not Movement in deferred
longer than 5 years = 86,000 tax asset - 41702
Longer than5years = -

133,358 315,600 Items not classified as
. . operating

Refertonote 29 forinformationonsubsequentevents ~ oeooaoo i
regarding this joint operation. Interest income (18,619) (56,398)

Changes innet assets
and liabilities

(Increase) / decrease

in assets:

Tradeandotherreceivables 189745 (183739
Increase / (decrease) |

in liabilities:

Tradeand otherpayables | 33220  (97345)
Deferredtaxliability (6:619) :
Provisions | 44766 (110,252)

Net cash outflow from
operating activities (36,362) (622,020)

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



NOTE 25 EARNINGS PER SHARE

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013
Cents Cents
a) Basic earnings per share
Loss from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company (29) (10)
Lossfromdiscontinuedoperation
Total basic earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company (2.9) (1.0)
b) Diluted earnings per share
Loss from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company | (29) (10)
Lossfromdiscontinuedoperation - -
Total diluted earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company (2.9) (1.0)
2014 2013
c)Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share
Basicearningspershare
Loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the companyusedin |
calculating basic earnings per share
fromcontinuingoperations (3641M)  (1181078)
(3.641,111) (1,181,018)
Diluted earnings per share
Loss from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company
usedincalculatingbasic earningspershare Ee4am)  (118108)
adustmentsmadetoearnings : :
Loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company used in calculating
diluted earnings per share (3,641,1M) (1,181,018)
2014 2013
Number Number
d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator incalculating |
basic earnings per share 124,287,381 112,243,617
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:
Options : :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share 124,287,381 112,243,617

(1) Potential ordinary shares are not treated as dilutive as to do so would
reduce the loss per share for the 2014 and 2013 financial year. The weighted
average number of options that were not included in the calculation was
31,252,825.
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NOTE 26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

PepinNini Minerals Limited has an employee share option
scheme. At the discretion of management options are granted
over the ordinary shares of PepinNini Minerals Limited to
directors and executives as part of aremuneration package
offered for employment. The options soissued are for nil
consideration and have variable exercise prices and maturity
dates, i.e.last date to exercise the options.

Eachemployee share option converts into one ordinary share
of PepinNiniMinerals Limited on exercise. No amounts are

paid or payable by the recipient onreceipt of the option.

The options carry neither rights to dividends nor voting rights.
Options may be exercised at any time from the date of vesting

to the date of their expiry.

The following share-based payment arrangements were in
existence during the current and comparative reporting periods:

Grant Expir Exercise Balance Granted Exercised Forfeited/ Balance Vested and

Piry . at start of durin durin Expired durin at end of | exercisable at
Date date price 9 9 P 9

the year the year the year the year the year |end of the year
cents Number Number Number Number Number Number
Consolidated and company - 2014
8Apri3 ! TJunle ! 40 ' 2,500,000 ! - - -1 2500000 @ 2,500,000 :
8Apri3 ! Tunle ! 6.0 ' 2,500,000 ! - - -1 2500000 @ 2,500,000 :
8Apri3 ! 1Junle ! 125 ¢ 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000 ! 1,600,000 !
1Janl4 ' 1Janle 5.0 -+ 2,500,000 ! - -1 2500000 @ 2,500,000
TJanl4 ' 1jull6 6.0 -+ 2,500,000 ! - -1 2,500,000 ! -
1Jan14 ' 1anl7 70 -1 2,500,000 - -1 2,500,000 ! -
Weighted average exercise priceof
vested options at end of the year 6.3c

Grant Expir Exercise Balance Granted Exercised Forfeited/ Balance Vested and
piry . at start of durin durin Expired durin at end of | exercisable at

Date date price g g P g

the year the year the year the year the year |end of the year
cents Number Number Number Number Number Number
Consolidated and company - 2013
3Sep12 ! 31Decl4 ! 5.5 - 250,000 ! - 250,000 ! - -
8Apri3 ! 1Junle ! 40 -+ 2,500,000 ! - -1 2500000 @ 2,500,000
8Apr13  : 1Junl6 6.0 -+ 2,500,000 ! - -1 2,500,000 ! -
8Apr13  : 1Jun16 125 ¢ - 1,600,000 ! - - 1,600,000 ! -
Weighted average exercise priceof
vested options at end of the year 40c !

No options were exercised during the year ended 30 June 2014.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of share options
outstanding at the end of the period was 2 years (2013:2 years).

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



Fair value of options granted

7,500,000 options were granted in the 2014 financial year
(6,850,000~ 2013).

Thefair value at grant date is independently determined using
aBlack Scholes option pricing model that takes into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of
dilution, the share price at grant date and expected price
volatility of the underlying share, and therisk free interest rate
for the term of the option. The expected price volatility is
based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of
the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.

In this calculation therisk free interest rate used was 2.74%,
the underlying share price at the time of option grant was
$0.02 and the volatility used was 257.28%

Expenses arising from share
based payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share based payment transactions
recognised during the period as part of employee benefit
expense were as follows:

CONSOLIDATED

2014 2013

Options issued under
employee share option plan 45,329 30,733

All of the above expenses are inrespect of
equity-settled transactions.

NOTE 27 BUSINESS AND
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The Group has applied AASB 8 Operating Segments from
1July 2009. AASB 8requires a‘management approach’under
which segment information is presented on the same basis as
thatused for internal reporting purposes. The chief operating
decision-makers have been identified as the board of directors
consisting of executive and non-executive directors.

The operating segments are identified by management based
onthe nature of the commodity to be sold. Discrete financial
information about operating businesses is reported to the
executive management (executive directors) on at leasta
monthly basis. The Group operates in one segment, being
mineral exploration and development.

NOTE 28 PARENT ENTITY
INFORMATION

a) Summary financial information

The individual financial statements for the parent entity show
the following aggregate amounts:

PARENT

2014 2013

Current assets 3124144 2,091,351
20,214,596 22,423,458

Current liabilities (360,447) (291,733)

Total liabilities (360,447)  (298,176)

Shareholders equity

Issued capital 20,900,621 19,931,989
Reserves 438,097 383,548
Retained earnings 1687104 1,809,744

Total equity 19,651,614 22,125,281

Profit or loss for the year (3,487629) (1,080,400)

Total comprehensive income  (3,487,629) (1,080,400)

(b) Contingent liabilities of the parent entity

The parent entity did not have any contingent liabilities as
at 30 June 2014 or 30 June 2013.

c) Contractual commitments for the acquisition
of property, plant or equipment

As at 30 June 2014, the parent entity had nil contractual
commitments for the acquisition of property, plant or
equipment (30 June 2013:nil).
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NOTE 29 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

PepinNini Minerals Limited announced the signing of a sale and
purchase agreement for its 40% interest in the Uranium and
Mineral Resources Joint Venture between PepinNiniResources
Curnamona Pty Ltd (a wholly owned subsidiary of PepinNini
Minerals Ltd) and Sinosteel Uranium SA Pty Ltd. Under the Sale
and Purchase Agreement Sinosteel Uranium SA Pty Ltd is the
purchaser and the purchase considerationis $2.3m.

In August 2014, PepinNini Minerals Limited successfully raised
$500,000 though the sale of part of the shortfall relating to an
entitlements issue during the financial year.

PepinNini Minerals Limited announced a pro-ratanon-
renounceable entitlementissue of shares on 24 April 2014.
Theissue, under a prospectus, was two shares for every

three shares held by eligible shareholders. The offer closed on
22 May 2014 and the shortfall was available for 3 months until
22 August 2014

In September 2014 PepinNini Minerals Limited announced the
signing of a purchase option deed with Phosphate Australia
(ASX:POZ)for exploration of the Manchego project in

the West Musgrave region of Western Australia. Aninitial
consideration of $100,000 has been paid to allow PepinNini
tostart exploration of this project.

There has been no other matter or circumstance that has
arisensince 30 June 2014 that has significantly affected,
or may significantly affect:

a) the Group's operations in future financial years, or
b) theresults of those operations in future financial years, or

c) the Group's state of affairs in future financial years.

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



DIRECTORS DECLARATION

Inaccordance with aresolution of the Directors of PepinNini
Minerals Limited, | state that:

1. In the opinion of the Directors:

a) The financial statements and notes of PepinNini
Minerals Limited for the financial year ended
30June 2014 are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001,including:

i) Givinga true and fair view of the consolidated
entity's financial position as at 30 June 2014
and of its performance for the year ended on
that date; and

ii) Complyingwith Accounting Standards (including
the Australian Accounting Interpretations)
and the Corporations Regulations 2001

b) The financial statements and notes also comply
with International Financial Reporting Standards
asdisclosedinNote 2

c) There arereasonable grounds to believe that the
Company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they become due and payable

2. This declaration has been made after receiving
the declarations required to be made to the
Directors in accordance with section 295A of the
Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended
30 June 2014.

Onbehalf of the board

%A Ll oA ~Kimnegt

Rebecca Holland-Kennedy
Managing Director
Adelaide, 18 September 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO MEMBERS

Ernst & Young Tel: +61 B 8417 1600
121 King William Street Fax: +61 B 8417 1775
Adelaide 5A 5000 Australia ey.com

e GPO Box 1271 Adelaide SA 5001
Building a better ’ ' !
working world

Independent auditor's report to the members of PepinNini Minerals
Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of PepinNini Minerals Limited, which comprises
the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2014, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and the directors' declaration of the consolidated entity comprising
the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial
year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act
2001 and for such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due-to fraud or
error. In Note 2, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Independence
In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations

Act 2001. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence
Declaration, a copy of which is included in the directors’ report.
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Opinion
In our opinion:

a. the financial report of PepinNini Minerals Limited is in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June
2014 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

ii complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations
2001; and

b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in Note 2.

Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 37 to 46 of the directors' report for the
year ended 30 June 2014. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act
2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of PepinNini Minerals Limited for the year ended 30 June
2014, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

2
¢t f %’NQI
Ernst & Young

W%’L/\_/

Nigel Stevenson
Partner

Adelaide

18 September 2014
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ADDITIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE INFORMATION

The shareholder information set out below was applicable C. Twenty largest holders of

asat 31 August 2014. quoted equity securities

As at 31 August 2014 there were 170,047,389 fully paid

ordinary shares PNN held by 1,636 individual shareholders. FULLY PAID

ORDINARY SHARES

Allissued ordinary shares carry one vote per share.

Ordinary shareholders Number Percentage
A. Distribution of equity securities Kalinda Outlook Pty Ltd | 50034598 | 29.42% |
Dellta Pty Ltd 26,315,789 15.48%
Number of Numberof | ~  -------mmmmmmoo oo
holders shares George Holland Pty Limited 5,321,890 313%
1-1,000 224 126624 | Sinosteel AustraliaPtyLtd | 3,300,000 ! 1.94% !
1,001-5,000 520 1,545,011 Mr Tony Russell Hutton & ‘ !
Mrs Gaylene Sandra Hutt 3210318 ! 1.89%
5,001-10,000 ; 2511 2077105 R A St S
””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””” LuisF doN K dy 2777779 1.63%
10,001 - 100,000 | 503 | 18,720,844 | heremendoTormantennecy AN R
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————— . . oL
100,001 and over | 138 | 147577805 | ,R,‘?t,"?ft,B?'?!,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,:‘,,,2;595;95‘,‘,,: ,,,,,,, ] :'r,’?’,/f’,;
: ‘ JP MorganNominees Australia ' '
1636 | 170,047,389 | Limited<CashlncomeA/C> | 2451075 ! 144%
Holding less thana ‘ ! ‘ PO P S S
! ! ! N o 726 114%
marketable parcel ! 1,254+ 8,390,817 : Clt{corporrllneesptxltd7793376770
””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””” Minsk Pty Ltd ! 1,621,010 ! 0.95%
. PSZ Nominees Pty Ltd ! ! !
B. Substantial shareholders <The PSZA/C> 3 1551154 3 0.91% 3
Eshan Pty Ltd + 1,500,000 ! 0.88%
FULLY PAID
ORDINARY SHARES Ronald Edward Robertson v 1,445,364 ¢ 0.85% !
Ordinary shareholders Percentage Number Na’ElOﬂal EneygyPtyLﬁd 7777777 714162779 o 083%
Kalinda Outlook Pty Ltd 2942% @ 50,034,598 ! Mr Zachary Kalamboyas +
Mrs Sophia Kalamboyas ‘ ‘ ‘
1 o) ' ' ' | .
Dellta Pty Ltd L DAB% ;263709 ; <Z&SKalamboyasS/FA/C> | 1271000 | 075% |
Total : 44.90% | 76,350,387 | National Nominees Limited © 1,233,800 ! 0.73%
Sarasa Schirmer 1,200,000 0.71%
Andrew Damon Schirmer 1,170,000 0.69%
Hayden Robert Aspinall 1,102,490 0.65%
BrianErnest Zucal &
Stephen Brian Zucal ! ! !
<Brian Zucal SuperFunda/c> @ 1,095,000 0.64%
Total ' 112,557,236 66.19%

PEPINNINI MINERALS LIMITED



The shareholder information set out below was applicable
as at 31 August 2014

As at 31 August 2014 there were 27,058,105 options PNNO
heldby 229 individual option holders.

Allissued options are convertible at $0.05 until 30 June 2015
to fully paid ordinary shares.

Optionholders donot hold any voting rights.

A. Distribution of equity securities

Number of Number of
holders options
1-1,000 24 13228
1001-5000 58| 154628
5000-10000 37 295200
10001-100000 | 97| 3715720
100001andover |+ 13 22879321
229 ' 27,058,097
Holding less thana :
marketable parcel L 226 L 6356777
B. Twenty largest holders of
quoted equity securities PNNO
OPTIONS
Option Holders Number Percentage

Rebecca AnnHolland-Kennedy @ 18,923,549 69.94%
LuisFernandoNormanKennedy | 11112 | 411% |
AexanderGeorge
William Kennedy ! 666,667 2.46%
CiticorpNomineesPtyLtd | 366666 | 136% |
AhmedMohamoodShah | 350000 | - 129% |
DavidArchibaldMcCallom | 300000 | 171%
DavidGordonJohnBurch | 233334 0.86% |
BrentonRoyWard 200000 . 074%
CommunityMedical Centres
Pty Ltd <CMC Super Fund A/C> 200,000 ! 0.74%
AmmaTulRashidanShah | 190213 | 070% |
Tindindi CellarsPtyLtd 133334 | 049% |
QuentinDudley Treasure&
Toinette Coralie Treasure ! 102,223 0.38%

B. Twenty largest holders of quoted equity
securities PNNO (continued]

OPTIONS
Option Holders Number Percentage

Kenneth Wayne Starkey & ! ! !
Nola Claire Starkey 102,223 0.38%
jurgenHommel L 100000 | 037% |
CagenWang | 100000 | 037% |
JeremyMichaelMarkDobbin | 100000 | 037% |
PhilipRoger Clifford 100000 | 037% |
MitchellStuart O'Brien 100000 | 037% |
NicolaTerrigno 100000 | 037% |
BruceHambour&
Penelope Hambour ! ! !
<Aussiewide Super Funda/c> 100,000 037%
SusamneAmielaurence | 100000 | 037% |
WoolandraPtyltd | 89044 | 033% |
NationalNomineesLimited | 82666 & | 0.31%
Lawrence Crowe Consulting |+ .
PtyLtd 80,000 0.30%

GrandmexPtyltd | 73334 027% |
NgwyenMuoiNgo | i 0.26% |
VanMinhDuong | 66667 | 0.25% |
DBSuperlvestmentsPtyltd -
<Burling Super Fund A/C> ! 66,667 ! 0.25%
Lizha 66667 | 025% |
HwPhulam 66667 | 0.25% |
Georgekwitko | 66667 | 0.25% |
JosephOliver Carroll | 66667 | 0.25% |
KeithFrancisSutton | 66667 | 0.25% |
lohnBailieChristie&
Frances Glynis Christie ! 62,223 0.23%
Nisknutzelus&
Hans Knutzelius ! 60,000 0.22%
Total ' 24,664,369 91.15% |
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Pepinfini

Minerals Limited

96 Babbage Road,
Roseville Chase NSW 2069

Phone: +61 (0)2 9417 6212
Fox: +61 (0)2 9417 3043
€mail: admin@pepinnini.com.au

Level 1, 76 Waymouth Street,
Adelaide SA 5000

GPO Box 403, Adelaide SA 5001

Phone: +61 (0)8 8218 5000
Fax: +61 (0)8 8212 5717
€mail: admin@pnn-adelaide.com.au

Pepinfini.com.au



